82.42
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24
28
2018 2018 12 31
Genting Singapore Limited
/
098270
10
12 32
36
03-5575-8400
12 32
36
03-5575-7925
2006 X1
50 XA
098270
2019 25 UFJ
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30 29 2017
L 1
2017 [
1
2017 [
]
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

2,539,235 2,392,559 2,228,050 2,400,898 2,862,485
975,192 892,289 547,406 337,615 836,300
755,393 685,555 384,547 193,060 635,206

755,393 601,000 266,349 75,186 517,331
- 84,555 118,198 117,875 117,875
- - - [€)) -

755,319 672,708 373,538 238,351 417,694

755,319 588,153 255,340 120,477 299,819
- 84,555 118,198 117,875 117,875
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- - - [€)) -
6.27 5.00 2.22 0.62 4.23

7,781,347 7,441,560 9,530,263 9,625,758 9,703,326
9,767,142 9,606,826 11,446,308 12,026,843 12,672,243

) 79.7 77.5 83.3 80.0 76.6
1,146,414 1,255,876 1,164,832 1,261,927 955,602
(105,351) 456,867  (270,126) 455,490 69,558

(663,586) (2,774,728)  (980,151)  (457,956)  (982,112)

4,214,237 3,833,904 4,963,436 5,002,063 3,697,494

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

5,907,665 4,711,999 6,846,187 6,803,640 6,687,003
6,394,043 5,376,827 7,102,541 7,043,162 6,777,835
) 92.4 87.6 96.4 96.6 98.7
3,328,660 2,868,836 3,771,777 3,565,367 3,151,661

1984
1931 2004

1984 16
1986 1986 11 19
1987 1987 20
1993 1993
2005 2005 12 12 SGX-ST
2006

2006 12
Resorts World Sentosa RWS
2007 2007 16 RWS
2008 2008 24
RWSPL
40
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2009 2009 27
2010 RWS
2010 14
2010 18
2011
2011 10 15
2012 RWS
2012 11 22
2012 12 RWS
2014
50:50
JV
2015 2015 23 RWSPL 22 7000
2015 30
2017 2017 Jv
2017
2017 10 24 200
2017 12 29
2018 2018 XA
2018 X1
2019 2019 RWSPL
RWS 45
2019 25 8000
RWSPL 22 7000
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QY
RWS
RWS
RWS
49
Universal Studio Singapore USS
Adventure Cove Waterpark ACW
Meetings, Incentives, Conventions and Exhibitions MICE
@
RWS uss ACw
Uss
2014
6,000
800 100,000
ACw 14 ACw
(b)
RWS 1,600 RWS
2015 Genting Hotel Jurong
GHJ GHJ
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ESPA RWS
ESPA 10,000 ESPA

RWS ESPA

©

60 RWS RWS

RWS 45

)
RWS

MICE RWS
6,000 10 15

VIP

e
15,000

500
2,400

®

©

@

2018 12 31 53
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oo00000
2,000,000,000 100%
098269
RWS
RWSPL
Genting
Berhad GENT 2019 GENT
Genting Overseas
Holdings Limited GOHL 52.69%
)
1
2018 10,265 5,554
4,711 12 2,506
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GDP %
RWS
RWS RWS
RWS
i.
30
RWS
RWS
RWS 34
2011
ii.
a.
b.
C.
Casino Regulatory Authority CRA

RWS

LKT

20
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iv.

V.

14
RWS
2018 1,800

vi

RWS

i. RWS

10

RWS

RWS

2017 12

2017

table65
2018 12
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2019 RWS 45

GFA 50 16 4000 GFA

@

(b)

©

(d) RWS
1,100

(e

) MICE

(g) RWS

RWS

RWS 2010 CRA 2010 14
RWS 2013 2016 2019

RWS

RWS
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CRA
CCA
CCA
2006
1992
2004
CRA CRA
CCA CRA
3,000
CCA
CRA
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2009

2010

CRA

2009

RWS 2009

RWS CRA
5,000

CRA

@
(i) RWS
RWS
CCA 33A

10
2019 2030

(i) RWS
RWS
RWS
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RWS
RWS
/
RWS
(iid) GENT
RWS
@iv)
LKT
Genting Malaysia Berhad GENM
GENT
LKT GENM
LKT Golden Hope Limited GHL
Genting Hong Kong Limited GENHK
GHL
LKT
GENHK
LKT GENHK
GHL
LKT
LKT
GENT  GENM GENHK GHL
LKT

GENT ~ GENM GENHK GHL
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(b)
()
CRA
RWS CRA  RWS
RWS 2016
RWS CRA
CRA
RWS
RS
RWS
CRA 2019 2019
50 100
150 2,000 3,000
2022
GGR GGR
15 GGR
24 GGR 12
GGR 31 18
GGR 22 RWS
GGR 12 GGR
22 10

2022 RWSPL
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2005

Giii)

@v)

™

RWS USS
RWS
RWS USS
RWS

(vi)
RWS
RWS
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RWS
/ CRA

©
Q)

(i)

'dD)

RWS
RWS

@v)

@
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2019
RWSPL 45

RWS

)

RWSPL RWS 45
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'dD)

@iv)
RWS

RWS
©)
Q)
1976
LKT

20

RWS RWS
RWS

RWS

(i)
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@iv)

2008

™

RWS VIP
RWS

(vi)

USS

RWS

IT
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IT
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(i) SARS
SARS A

H5N1

HIN1 H5N1

/

iii)
A3
R&l

(i)

(69
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2018
2018 12 31 % 2,539.2
10% 755.4
2017 25% 6.27
i.
ii.
12 31
2018 2017 /
%
2,539,235 2,392,559 6
1,153,826 1,074,850 7
975,192 892,289 9
755,393 685,555 10
755,319 672,708 12
755,393 601,000 26
755,319 588,153 28
6.27 5.00 25
12 31
2018 2017 /

%

1,678,987 1,588,903 6
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857,688 801,542 7
2,560 2,114 21
2018
2018
2018 2017 6%  1,679.0
2018
2017 7%  857.7
90
/
2018 2017 13%  183.3 2018
2017 92%  11.1
96.3 94%
6.2
2018
12 31
2018 2017 /
%
5,241,456 5,468,353 )
4,525,686 4,138,473 9
8,904,430 8,740,645 2
7,781,347 7,441,560 5
8,904,430 8,740,645 2
2018 12
31 4,214.2
12%
12 31
2018 2017 /
%
1,146,414 1,255,876 )
(105,351) 456,867 N-M.
(663,586) (2,774,728) (76)
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N_M.
2018 2017 1,000
2017 % 1,146.4
2018
2017 456.9
2018 105.4
2017 2017
596.3
2018 2017 76% 663.6
2017 2,300.0
2019 RWSPL RWSPL
2007

RWSPL
2007
RWSPL
45

24/202



EDINETOOOO
00000000 O0000O00o0OO0000O0Ono(Ess484)
oOoOooodn

2018 12 31 89.8
2018 12 31

490,075 2007
1,802.5 2011

088934
9,026.9 2013

608516

2018 10,265
2018
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1
2019
12,094,026,824
36,792,150
2019
12,094,026,824
36,792,150
- 12,094,026,824 - -
36,792,150
2
3
2019
2013 25 5,982,000 12,229,740,847 1,184,718 5,730,876,402
2014
16

ESOS
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2014 24 7,745,000| 12,237,485,847 -| 5,730,876,402
PSS

2014 29 651,000 12,238,136,847 129,956 5,731,006,358 | ESOS
21

2014 24 5,275,000 12,243,411,847 -| 5,731,006,358 | PSS

2014 25 4,724,451 12,248,136,298 942,870 5,731,949,228 |ESOS

12

2014 12 10 | (46,284,000)| 12,201,852,298|  (50,080,018)| 5,681,869,210

2014 12 18 4,589 12,201,856,887 948| 5,681,870,158 |ESOS

2014 12 23 2,000,000 12,203,856,887 -| 5,681,870,158 | PSS

2014 12 30 | (97,277,000)| 12,106,579,887| (108,819,815)| 5,573,050,343

2015 300,631 12,106,880,518 62,077| 5,573,112,420|ES0S

2015 12 | (10,786,000) | 12,096,094,518| (11,558,088)| 5,561,554,332

2015 19 362,937 12,096,457,455 76,086 5,561,630,418 |ESOS
22

2015 26 9,595,000 12,106,052,455 -| 5,561,630,418 PSS

2015 13 | (16,659,600) | 12,089,392,855| (16,821,936)| 5,544,808,482

2015 1,367,115 12,090,759,970 291,716| 5,545,100,198 | ESOS
20

2015 (11,989,400) | 12,078,770,570|  (11,076,198) | 5,534,024,000

2015 1,168,525| 12,079,939,095 251,630 5,534,275,630 | ESOS

2015 15 | (10,255,200) | 12,069,683,895 (9,498,240) | 5,524,777,390

2015 22 1,804,620| 12,071,488,515 389,506| 5,525,166,896 | ESOS

2015 24 8,757,550 12,080,246,065 -| 5,525,166,896 | PSS

2015 29 11,780,759 | 12,092,026,824 2,538,530 5,527,705,426ES0S
10

2015 12 23 2,000,000 12,094,026,824 -| 5,527,705,426 | PSS
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2019 15.24%
84.76%
) % %
1- 99 600 0.81 12,175 0.00
100 - 1,000 7,666 10.32 4,788,582 0.04
1,001 - 10,000 37,443 50.40 210,922,434 1.75
10,001 - 1,000,000 28,458 38.31 1,453,048,306 12.05
1,000,001 119 0.16 10,388,463,177 86.16
74,286 100.00 12,057,234,674 100.00
5
2019
"
6,353,685, 269 52.69
1,153,904,151 9.57
766,024,555 6.35
441,310,481 3.66
269,865,011 2.24
230,784,086 1.91
208,813,657 1.73
181,340,360 1.50
0CBC 115,419,269 0.96
85,338,464 0.71
9,806,485,303 81.32

2019
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%
% %
GOHL 6,353,685,269 52.6960 - -
GENT - - 6,353,685,269 52.6960
142,800 0.0012 6,353,685,269 52.6960
Kien Huat Reality Sdn
Berhad KHR
- - 6,353,828,069 52.6972
Kien Huat
International Limited
KHI
- - 6,353,828,069 52.6972
14,195,063 0.1178 6,353,828,069 52.6972
LKT
- - 61 121
353,828,069 52 6972
LKT GENT GENT GENT
LKT
LKT
GOHL GENT GENT GOHL
KHR GENT 20% KHR GOHL
KHR KHI KHI KHR GOHL
LKT
KHI KHR
KHR GOHL
LKT LKT

LKT
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2017 12 31 (2)2017
2017 20 0.015 (b)
2018 17 AGM
2018 23 0.02
2018 12 31 (a)2018
2018 9 20 0.015 (b)
2019 17 AGM 2019 23
0.02
1
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
2014 12 31 [2015 12 31 [2016 12 31 (2017 12 31 (2018 12 31
1.510 1.085 1.040 1.380 1.410
1.005 0.695 0.660 0.875 0.855
2 2018
2018 2018 2018 2018 10 2018 11 2018 12
1.29 1.32 1.29 1.13 1.06 0.98
1.19 1.15 1.05 1 0.855 0.88
1 2019 10
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1951 LKT 1986 10 24 32.5
16 6,368,023,132
1993 11
2005
LKT 1976
GENT GENM
GENHK
GENHK

2017 12 NASDAQ

NASDAQ

NASDAQ
GENHK

2011 2015

LKT

LKT
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€00

1955
31

2010
19
€00
RWS
2015
25 RWS
RWS
2006
2004
€00
1982

SEA

2007

14.5

15,759,600
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1939 11 11
29 2008 12
DPA
2004
DPA
1963
2005
2006
2015
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1955 125,000
10 2017 12
)
2007
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1960 12 2017 11 1.5 125,000
25
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Q)

1961 2018
33

2009

2011
2010 2013
2016
2018
2019 17
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2012
(i)
coo
10%
/ coo
€00
€00
AGM
AGM AGM

Giii)
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ooooooo
2018
€00
€00
€00
€00
€00
€00
2018 PSS
2018 2018
250,000
2018 2018
o @
OO0 @ |
10,000,000
10,250,000
0.4 51.0]48.5 0.1 0.0 100 750,000
5,500,000
5,750,000
0.7| 32.4]66.5 0.4 0.0 100 750,000
250,000
500,000
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100| 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 100 125,000
100| 0.0| 0.0 0.0 0.0 100 125,000
100| 0.0| 0.0 0.0 0.0 100 125,000
100| 0.0| 0.0 0.0 0.0 100 125,000
0
250,000
100| 0.0| 0.0 0.0 0.0 100 0
) 2018
0) PSS 2018

) 2019 17
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Q)

SGXNet

Cap.50
2018
Cap.50

)
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D.
Q)
SGXNet
www .gentingsingapore.com
@)
C00 CFO cco
(1i)
AGM
SGXNet
AGM
AGM AGM
AGM SGXNet
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/ /
2017 2018
1,876 1,006 1,867 542
PwC
33 A

PwC PwC
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31

25

23

193

UFJ

103 )

38

134
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2018 12

131

PwC
23

2019 25
=82.42
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2018 12 31
2018 2017
4 2,539,235 209,283,749 2,392,559 197,194,713
" (1,385,409) (114,185,410) (1,317,709) (108,605,576)
1,153,826 95,098,339 1,074,850 88,589,137
6,201 511,086 100,571 8,289,062
72,342 5,962,428 71,094 5,859,567
(183,307)  (15,108,163) (161,591)  (13,318,330)
(62,751)  (5,171,937) (57,928)  (4,774,426)
(11,119) (916,428) (134,707)  (11,102,551)
975,192 80,375,325 892,289 73,542,459
5 (35,913)  (2,959,949) (35,648)  (2,938,108)
3,959 326,301 3,385 278,992
6 943,238 77,741,676 860,026 70,883,343
7 (187,845) (15,482,185) (174,471)  (14,379,900)
755,393 62,259,491 685,555 56,503,443
- - (7,413) (610,979)
- - 4,321 356,137
74) (6,099) 104 8,572
- - (9,859) (812,579)
74 (6,099) (12,847)  (1,058,850)
755,319 62,253,392 672,708 55,444,593
755,393 62,259,491 601,000 49,534,420
- - 84,555 6,969,023
755,393 62,259,491 685,555 56,503,443
755,319 62,253,392 588,153 48,475,570
- - 84,555 6,969,023
755,319 62,253,392 672,708 55,444,593
2018 12 31 58,070,000 2017
48,320,000
57 116
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2018 2017
6.27 5 5.00
6.27 5 4.99 4
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2018 12 31
2018 2017 2018 2017
9 4,857,046 5,068,857 130 152
10 103,313 124,812 - -
11 58,252 54,293 - -
12 - - 2,315,995 1,631,145
13 171 52 - -
14 221,131 - - -
15 - 217,299 - -
16 1,543 3,040 389,562 417,544
5,241,456 5,468,353 2,705,687 2,048,841
17 - 11,786 - -
18 48,806 48,600 - -
16 143,792 126,907 359,696 459,150
19 118,851 117,276 - -
19 4,214,237 3,833,904 3,328,660 2,868,836
4,525,686 4,138,473 3,688,356 3,327,986
20 454,764 462,741 202,074 402,666
21 206,375 203,137 - -
201,573 200,303 38,448 26,865
862,712 866,181 240,522 429,531
3,662,974 3,272,292 3,447,834 2,898,455
8,904,430 8,740,645 6,153,521 4,947,296
23 5,527,705 5,527,705 5,527,705 5,527,705
23 (35,349) (44,432) (35,349) (44,432)
24 15,242 32,556 7,977 11,065
2,273,747 1,925,729 407,332 (782,339)
7,781,345 7,441,558 5,907,665 4,711,999
2 2 - -
7,781,347 7,441,560 5,907,665 4,711,999
13 288,728 283,360 - -
21 832,195 1,012,863 245,799 235,252
26 490 476 57 45
20 1,670 2,386 - -
1,123,083 1,299,085 245,856 235,297
8,904,430 8,740,645 6,153,521 4,947,296
57 116
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2018 12 31
2018 2017 2018 2017
9 400,317,731 417,775,194 10,715 12,528
10 8,515,057 10,287,005 - -
11 4,801,130 4,474,829 - -
12 - - 190,884,308 134,438,971
13 14,094 4,286 - -
14 18,225,617 - - -
15 - 17,909,784 - -
16 127,174 250,557 32,107,700 34,413,976
432,000,804 450,701,654 223,002,723 168,865,475
17 - 971,402 - -
18 4,022,591 4,005,612 - -
16 11,851,337 10,459,675 29,646,144 37,843,143
19 9,795,699 9,665,888 - -
19 347,337,414 315,990,368 274,348,157 236,449,463
373,007,040 341,092,945 303,994,302 274,292,606
20 37,481,649 38,139,113 16,654,939 33,187,732
21 17,009,428 16,742,552 - -
16,613,647 16,508,973 3,168,884 2,214,213
71,104,723 71,390,638 19,823,823 35,401,945
301,902,317 269,702,307 284,170,478 238,890,661
733,903,121 720,403,961 507,173,201 407,756,136
23 455,593,446 455,593,446 455,593,446 455,593,446
23 (2,913,465)  (3,662,085) (2,913,465)  (3,662,085)
24 1,256,246 2,683,266 657,464 911,977
187,402,228 158,718,584 33,572,303  (64,480,380)
641,338,455 613,333,210 486,909,749 388,362,958
165 165 - -
641,338,620 613,333,375 486,909,749 388,362,958
13 23,796,962 23,354,531 - -
21 68,589,512 83,480,168 20,258,754 19,389,470
26 40,386 39,232 4,698 3,709
20 137,641 196,654 - -
92,564,501 107,070,586 20,263,452 19,393,179
733,903,121 720,403,961 507,173,201 407,756,136
57 116
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OO0000O000DO000DO000000000000O(E33484)
OoOoooooo

2018 12 31

2017 12 31 5,527,705 (44,432) 11,043 14,257 7,256 1,925,729 7,441,558 2 7,441,560

SFRS(1)s 2.1 - - - (14,257) - 11,004 (3,163) - (3,163)

2018 5,527,705 (44,432) 11,043 - 7,256 1,936,823 7,438,395 2 7,438,397
- - - - - 755,393 755,393 - 755,393
- - - - ) - ) - )
- - 9,206 - - - 9,206 - 9,206
- 9,083 (12,189) - - 3,106 - - -
- - - - - (421,575) (421,575) - (421,575)
- 9,083 (2,983) - - (418,469) (412,369) - (412,369)

2018 12 31 5,527,705 (35,349) 8,060 - 7,182 2,273,747 7,781,345 2 7,781,347

57 116
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OoOoooooo

2017 5,527,705 (66,730) 28,663 17,349 17,011 1,697,933 2,308,330 9,530,261 9,530,263
- - - - - 601,000 84,555 685,555 685,555
- - - (3,092) (9,755) - - (12,847) (12,847)
- - 10,765 - - - - 10,765 10,765
- 22,298 (28,385) - - 6,087 - - -
- - - - - (360,751) - (360,751) (360,751)
- - - - - - (117,875) (117,875) (117,875)
- - - - - (24,990)  (2,275,010)  (2,300,000) (2,300,000)
. - - - - 6,450 - 6,450 6,450
- 22,298 (17,620) - - (373,204)  (2,392,885)  (2,761,411) (2,761,411)

2017 12 31 5,527,705 (44,432) 11,043 14,257 7,256 1,925,729 - 7,441,558 7,441,560

57 116
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OO0000O000DO000DO000000000000O(E33484)
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2018 5,527,705 (44,432) 11,043 22 (782,339) 4,711,999
- - - - 1,608,140 1,608,140
- - - (105) - (105)
- - 9,206 - - 9,206
- 9,083 (12,189) - 3,106 -
- - - - (421,575) (421,575)
- 9,083 (2,983) - (418,469) (412,369)

2018 12 31 5,527,705 (35,349) 8,060 (83) 407,332 5,907,665

57 116
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2017 5,527,705 (66,730) 28,663 - (951,781) 2,308,330 6,846,187
- - - - 542,646 84,555 627,201
- - - 22 - - 22
- - 10,765 - - - 10,765
- 22,298 (28,385) - 6,087 - -
- - - - (360,751) - (360,751)
- - - - - (117,875) (117,875)
- - - - (24,990) (2,275,010) (2,300,000)
- - - - 6,450 - 6,450
- 22,298 (17,620) - (373,204) (2,392,885) (2,761,411)

2017 12 31 5,527,705 (44,432) 11,043 22 (782,339) - 4,711,999

57 116
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2018 12 31
2017 12 31
SFRS(1)s

2018

2018 12 31

57 116

EDINETOOOO
OO0000O000DO000DO000000000000O(E33484)
OoOoooooo

455,503,446  (3,662,085) 910,164 1,175,062 598,040 158,718,584 613,333,210 165 613,333,375
2.1 - - - (1,175,062) - 914,367 (260,694) - (260,694)
455,503,446  (3,662,085) 910,164 - 508,040 159,632,952 613,072,516 165 613,072,681

- - - - - 62,259,491 62,259,491 - 62,259,491
- - - - (6,099) - (6.099) - (6,099)

- - 758,759 - - - 758,759 - 758,759

- 748,621  (1,004,617) - - 255,997 - - -

- - - - - (34,746,212) (34,746,212) - (34,746,212)
- 748,621 (245,859) - - (34,490,215) (33,987,453) - (33,987,453)

455,503,446  (2,913,465) 664,305 - 501,940 187,402,228 641,338,455 165 641,338,620
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OO0000O000DO000DO000000000000O(E33484)
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2017 455,593,446  (5,499,887) 2,362,404 1,429,905 1,402,047 139,943,638 190,252,559 785,484,112 165 785,484,276
- - - - - 49,534,420 6,969,023 56,503,443 - 56,503,443
- - - (254,843) (804,007) - - (1,058,850) - (1,058,850)
- - 887,251 - - - - 887,251 - 887,251
- 1,837,801  (2,339,492) - - 501,691 - - - -
- - - - - (29,733,097) - (29,733,097) - (29,733,097)
- - - - - - (9,715,258)  (9,715,258) - (9,715,258)
- - - - - (2,059,676) (187,506,324) (189,566,000) - (189,566,000)
- - - - - 531,609 - 531,609 - 531,609
- 1,837,801  (1,452,240) - - (30,759,474) (197,221,582) (227,595,495) - (227,595,495)

2017 12 31 455,593,446  (3,662,085) 910,164 1,175,062 598,040 158,718,584 - 613,333,210 165 613,333,375

57 116
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OO0000O000DO000DO000000000000O(E33484)

2018 455,593,446 (3,662,085) 910,164 1,813 (64,480, 380) 388,362,958
- - - - 132,542,899 132,542,899
- - - (8,654) - (8,654)
- - 758,759 - - 758,759
- 748,621 (1,004,617) - 255,997 -
- - - - (34,746,212) (34,746,212)
- 748,621 (245,859) - (34,490,215) (33,987,453)

2018 12 31 455,593,446 (2,913,465) 664,305 (6,841) 33,572,303 486,909,749

57 116
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OO0000O000DO000DO000000000000O(E33484)
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2017 455,593,446 (5,499,887) 2,362,404 - (78,445,790) 190,252,559 564,262,733
- - - - 44,724,883 6,969,023 51,693,906
- - - 1,813 - - 1,813
- - 887,251 - - - 887,251
- 1,837,801 (2,339,492) - 501,691 - -
- - - - (29,733,097) - (29,733,097)
- - - - - (9,715,258) (9,715,258)
- - - - (2,059,676) (187,506,324)  (189,566,000)
- - - - 531,609 - 531,609
- 1,837,801 (1,452,240) - (30,759,474) (197,221,582) (227,595,495)

2017 12 31 455,593,446 (3,662,085) 910,164 1,813 (64,480, 380) - 388,362,958

57 116
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2018 12 31

57

116

EDINETOOOO

00000000 O0000O00o0OO0000O0Ono(Ess484)

Ooooood
2018 2017
A 1,146,414 94,487,442 1,255,876 103,509,300
3,372 277,920 394 32,473
(119,625) (9,859,493) (76,084) (6,270,843)
2,477) (204,154) (2,214) (182,478)
11,904 981,128 596,273 49,144,821
1,475 121,570 - -
- - 5,838 481,168
- - (67,340) (5,550,163)
(105,351) (8,683,029) 456,867 37,654,978
- - 238,284 19,639,367
(26.862) (2,213,966) (24,959) (2,057,121)
(421,575)  (34,746,212) (360,751)  (29,733,097)
- - (2,300,000)  (189,566,000)
- - (117,875) (9,715,258)
(210,000)  (17,308,200) (192,500)  (15,865,850)
(3,574) (294,569) (2,739) (225,748)
(1,575) (129,812) (14,188) (1,169,375)
(663,586)  (54,692,758) (2,774,728)  (228,693,082)
377,477 31,111,654 (1,061,985)  (87,528,804)
3,833,904 315,990,368 4,963,436 409,086,395
377,477 31,111,654 (1,061,985)  (87,528,804)
2,856 235,392 (67,547) (5,567,224)
19 4,214,237 347,337,414 3,833,004 315,990,368
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116

EDINETOOOO

00000000 O0000O00o0OO0000O0Ono(Ess484)

oooooog
2018 2017
943,238 77,741,676 860,026 70,883,343
291,541 24,028,809 259,191 21,362,522
@,978) (245, 447) (311) (25,633)
2,522 207,863 14,855 1,224,349
3,208 264,403 5,971 492,130
23,976 1,976,102 23,721 1,955,085
8,857 729,994 10,104 832,772
58,070 4,786,129 48,320 3,982,534
- - 1,214 100,058
(118) (9,726) (96,285)  (7,935,810)
- - 4,331 356,961
(3,097) (255, 255) - -
9,206 758,759 10,765 887,251
2,434 200,610 406 33,463
27,056 2,229,956 25,544 2,105,336
(4,645) (382,841) 67,038 5,525,272
(72,342) (5,962,428) (71,004)  (5,859,567)
(3,959) (326,301) (3,385) (278,992)
- - 2 165
58 4,780 20 1,648
339,789 28,005,409 300,407 24,759,545
1,283,027 105,747,085 1,160,433 95,642,888
(2,640) (217,589) 12,504 1,030,580
(57,653) (4,751,760) 19,403 1,599,195
51,866 4,274,796 65,801 5,423,318
(8,427) (694,553) 97,708 8,053,003
1,274,600 105,052,532 1,258,141 103,695,981
53,172 4,382,436 76,258 6,285,184
(181,319)  (14,944,312) (78,247)  (6,449,118)
39) (3,214) (276) (22,748)
1,146,414 94,487,442 1,255,876 103,509,300
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2018

2017

2018

2017

57

EDINETOOOO

00000000 O0000O00o0OO0000O0Ono(Ess484)

Ooooood
978,103 2,645 235,252 1,216,000
(210,000) (3.574) - (213,574)
- 16,938 - 16,938
- 149 10,200 10,349
8,510 - 347 8,857
776,613 16,158 245,799 1,038,570
1,160,572 3,443 - 1,164,015
(192,500) (2,739) - (195,239)
- 2,253 238,284 240,537
- (312) (3,105) (3,417)
10,031 - 73 10,104
978,103 2,645 235,252 1,216,000
80,615,249 218,001 19,389,470 100,222,720
(17,308,200) (294,569) - (17,602, 769)
- 1,396,030 - 1,396,030
- 12,281 840,684 852,965
701,394 - 28,600 729,994
64,008,443 1,331,742 20,258,754 85,508,939
95,654,344 283,772 - 95,938,116
(15, 865,850) (225,748) - (16,091,598)
- 185,692 19,639,367 19,825,060
- (25,715) (255,914) (281,629)
826,755 - 6,017 832,772
80,615,249 218,001 19,389,470 100,222,720

116
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OoOoOoOoOodno
2018 12 31
1.
SGX-ST
2018
098270
10
2.
2.1
SFRS(1)s
2018 SFRS(1)s 2018 12 31
SFRS(1)s 2017
12 31
IFRSS
SFRS(1)s IFRSs IFRSs
SFRS(1)s 2018 12 31
SFRS(1)s
@) 2018
2018 2018
SFRS(1)s
SFRS(1)
SFRS(1) 15

SFRS(1) SFRS(1) 15 SFRS(I)s
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2017 12 31
217,299,000
2018
14,257,000 2018
2017 12 31
3,163,000 2018
SFRS(1)s
SFRS(1)s
(2018 :170,372,000 )
SFRS(I)s
2017
1,746,217 (157,314) 1,588,903
646,342 157,314 803, 656
2,392,559 . 2,392,559
SFRS(1)s 2017 12 31
157,839,000 20)
66,156,000 79,695,000 11,988,000
2017 1 1
® 2019
2019
SFRS(1) 16
SFRS(1) 23
SFRS(I) 16

SFRS(1) 16
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€))
()
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)

28

4,745,000

2019 1 1

(

64/202

EDINETOOOO
00000000 O0000O00o0OO0000O0Ono(Ess484)
oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO
00000000 O0000O00o0OO0000O0Ono(Ess484)
oOoOooodn

() )

®)

©
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2.3

2.4

2.5
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30 60
30 99

10 30
5 15

60 99
30 60
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2.6

@

CGUs

CGUs CGUs

®

©

30
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2.7

2.8

@

10
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CGUs



2.9

2018

@

)

)

)

12

®

©

@

O

12
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2018 1 1

@

®)
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2.13

2.14

@

12
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®)

©

1991

12

@

2.15
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ooooood
2.16

12

2.17

@

®)

©

2.18

@

®
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©
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2018 12 31 333,658,000

29(d)
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2018 2017
1,678,987 1,588,903
225,094 222,613
446,145 407,008
162,996 148,252
834,235 777,873
26,013 25,783
2,539,235 2,392,559
2018 2017
21,862 21,834
1,637 304
1,157 743
8,857 10,104
2,400 2,663

35,913 35,648
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Ogoooood
2018 2017
- 1,500 1,306
- 19,298 21,960
)

} 456,672 441,317
- 46,354 44,617
- 58 20
- 5,651 3,700
- PuC 1,806 1,816
- 61 60
542 1,006
&) 297,846 284,471
291,541 259,191
23,976 23,721
58,070 48,320
2,434 406

- (118) (96,285)

- (2,978) (311)
- (3,007) -
- 2,522 14,855
- 3,208 5,971
- 5,388 108,335
- - 1,214
- - 4,331
4,844 3,984
47,582 41,987
46,293 41,955
17,668 14,141

O 4,936,000 2017 6,191,000

)

781202




17
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OooooOodd
2018
184,101 191,197
2,831 (17,827)
186,932 173,370
(1,505) 26
2,418 1,075
913 1,101
187,845 174,471
943,238 860,026
(3.959) (3,385)
939,279 856,641
159,677 145,629
29,934 45,105
913 1,101
(6.443) (2,799)
(593) (409)
(1,004) (18,655)
1,297 674
4,064 3,825
187,845 174,471
2018

6,450
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oOoOooodn

2018 2017
755,393 601,000

2018 2017
12,044,309 12,024,712
11,704 25,024
12,056,013 12,049,736

2018 2017
6.27 5.00
6.27 4.99
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OO0000O000DO000DO000000000000O(E33484)

2018
132,445 18,162 3,905,712 989,307 2,467,673 24,403 10,342 7,548,044

- - (653) 29 - - - (624)
- 30 5,652 61,295 9,022 770 13,050 89,819

- - - (15,243) @n - - (15,330)

- - (1,448) (20,169) (1,961) (179) - (23,757)
- - - 6,046 - - (6,046) -

- - (7,327) 2,888 770 - - (3,669)
132,445 18,192 3,901,936 1,024,153 2,475,417 24,994 17,346 7,594,483
- 4,887 636,631 898,511 928,465 10,693 - 2,479,187

- - (340) 12 - - - (328)
- 725 96,780 61,458 130,957 1,621 - 291,541

- - - (14,899) @D - - (14,936)

- - (540) (19,935) (713) “n - (21,235)
- - 3,208 - - - - 3,208
- 5,612 735,739 925,147 1,058,672 12,267 - 2,737,437
132,445 12,580 3,166,197 99,006 1,416,745 12,727 17,346 4,857,046
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OoOoooooo

2017

132,445 18,162 3,857,807 963,328 2,501,313 26,346 6,811 7,506,212
- - (568) (46) 3 - - (611)
- - 53,059 42,475 14,581 257 10,293 120,665
- - @ (7,249) (267) (86) - (7,603)
- - 4,731) (15,912) (12,439) (2,114) (1,257) (36,453)
- - - 6,080 (575) - (5,505) -
- - - - (34,279) - - (34,279)
- - 146 631 (664) - - 113

132,445 18,162 3,905,712 989,307 2,467,673 24,403 10,342 7,548,044
- 4,162 550,901 875,660 824,872 9,029 - 2,264,624
- - (158) (46) 2 - - (202)
- 725 86,155 44,991 125,059 2,261 - 259,191
- - - (7,170) 267) (83) - (7.520)
- - (949) (15,439) (4,696) (514) - (21,598)
- - 682 180 5,109 - - 5,971
- - - 335 (335) - - -
- - - - (21,279) - - (21,279)
- 4,887 636,631 898,511 928,465 10,693 - 2,479,187

132,445 13,275 3,269,081 90,796 1,539,208 13,710 10,342 5,068,857
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763,401,000 2017 783,724,000 15,732,000 2017 4,919,000
16,938,000 2017
2,253,000
42,118,000
2019 2020 98,544,000
19,026,000
2018
359 - 359
29 16 45
388 16 404
207 - 207
67 - 67
274 - 274
114 16 130
2017
359 - 359
130 - 130
7 - 7
207 - 207

152 - 152
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OoOoOoOoOodno
10.
2018
1,057 83,049 81,162 18,556 183,824
- - - 2,477 2,417
1,057 83,049 81,162 21,033 186,301
- - 47,498 11,514 59,012
- - 22,521 1,455 23,976
- - 70,019 12,969 82,988
1,057 83,049 11,143 8,064 103,313
2017
1,057 83,051 81,162 16,342 181,612
_ - - 2,214 2,214
- ) - - @3]
1,057 83,049 81,162 18,556 183,824
- - 24,976 10,315 35,291
- - 22,522 1,199 23,721
- - 47,498 11,514 59,012
1,057 83,049 33,664 7,042 124,812
23,976,000 2017 23,721,000
CGUs
2018 2017
83,047 83,047
2 2
83,049 83,049

84/202
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25

CGU

DCP(

2008
SLM

DCP

15

DCP

CGU

RWSPL

RWSPL

CGU

WACC

CGU

DCP
RWSPL SLM
SLM DCP
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RWSPL
CGU
2.0 7.3 2017 2.0
2018 2017
58,252 54,293
DCP 80 20
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OooooOodd
DCP
2018 2017
5,202 5,310
50,361 52,182
50 -
55,613 57,492
6,343 2,419
23,006 18,993
29,349 21,412
(3,781) (3,379)
(1,299) (298)
(5,080) (3,677)
(7,067) (7,361)
72,815 67,866
19,870 18,424
(
- (3,098) (3,072)
- 161 87
5,947 5,090
(998) (859)
4,949 4,231
DCP
DCP
2018 2017
67,866 63,635
4,949 4,231
72,815 67,866

DCP 58,252 54,293
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2018 2017
242,038 242,188
43) (43)
241,995 242,145
2,074,000 1,389,000
2,315,995 1,631,145

12

2018 2017
43 40
- 3
43 43

RWSPL

2018 2017

100% 100%

SGX-ST 712 715
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2018

2017
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OooooOodd
2018 2017

171 52
(288,728) (283,360)
(288,557) (283,308)

23,262 (22,947) - 315
(304,962) 17,806 - (287,156)
(1,608) (108) - (1,716)
(306,570) 17,698 - (288,872)
(283,308) (5,249) - (288,557)
10,027 13,219 16 23,262
(308,601) 3,639 - (304,962)
(1,502) (106) - (1,608)
(310,103) 3,533 . (306,570)
(300,076) 16,752 16 (283,308)
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15.

2017 12 31
2018

2018 12 31

@
(b)

@

(b)

2018

2.1

SFRS(1)
14

15
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2018

2017

217,299

3,097
(1,475)

2,210

221,131

183,137
37,994

221,131

2018

2017

180,643
36,656

217,299

217,299,000
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16.
2018 2017 2018 2017
333,658 252,156 - -
- - 45,031 29,763
32,148 13,180 24,451 8,052
8 38 - -
- - 392,710 500,220
365,814 265,374 462,102 538,035
29(d) (239,070) (156,253) (102,570) (78,989)
126,744 109,121 359,622 459,046
5,818 9,365 2 3
11,230 8,421 72 101
143,792 126,907 350,696 459,150
- - 179,287 198,051
- - 262,500 270,000
- - 441,787 468,051
29(d) - - (52,225) (50,507)
- - 380,562 417,544
1,543 3,040 - _
1,543 3,040 389,562 417,544
655,210,000 2017 770,220,000 389,562,000 2017
417,544,000 12
17.
2017 12 31
2018
18.
2018 2017
4,482 4,291
18,633 19,123
25,691 25,186
48,806 48,600
82,286,000 2017

79,105,000 )
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20.

2018 2017 2018 2017
3,752,652 3,135,417 3,076,117 2,503,635
461,585 698,487 252,543 365,201
4,214,237 3,833,904 3,328,660 2,868,836
118,851 117,276 - -
21
2018 2017 2018 2017
1,116 526 353 28
209,437 188,156 8,281 8,257
11,159 53,054 - -
4,664 9,515 - -
161,957 157,839 - -
60,918 51,930 168 241
32 62 - -
34 107 26 95
- - 193,246 394,031
- 14 - 14
5,447 1,538 - -
454,764 462,741 202,074 402,666
329 35 - -
1,341 2,351 - -
1,670 2,386 - -

91/202



12 31
21.
a
22
a
b
22
@)
2015
2020 23
2017 12 31
sbc
(b)
2017 10 24
240,240,000
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2018 2017 2018 2017
157,839 129,533 - -
161,957 157,839 - -
4,118 28,306 - -
2018 2017 2018 2017
203,017 201,490 - -
3,358 1,647 - -
206,375 203,137 - -
573,596 776,613 - -
245,799 235,252 245,799 235,252
12,800 998 - -
832,195 1,012,863 245,799 235,252
1,038,570 1,216,000 245,799 235,252
23
10,000,000
SDC
SDC 2018
31
20,000,000,000
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2018 2017
- 4,900 2,033
- 14,415 1,116
- 1,492 -
20,807 3,149
(4,649) (504)
16,158 2,645
21 -
- 3,358 1,647
- 11,352 998
- 1,448 -
16,158 2,645
2018
12,094,027 5,527,705 (54,792) (44,432)
- - 10,760 9,083
12,094,027 5,527,705 (44,032) (35,349)
2017
12,094,027 5,527,705 (79,651) (66,730)
- - 24,859 22,298
12,094,027 5,527,705 (54,792) (44,432)
@
2018 17

10
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()] 2009

2009
2,043,716,094 2009 23

0.80 2009 2009 23
1,931,564,264 2009
15.5 2009 2009 10
21 1,931,564,264

2018 12 31 2009

37,832
UK 30,675

70,000

172,722
412,271
169,648
267,442
1,160,590
384,661

1,545,251

24.

2018 2017 2018 2017

a) 8,060 11,043 8,060 11,043

- 14,257 -
c 7,182 7,256 (83) 22
15,242 32,556 7,977 11,065

@

PSS

2007 10 PSS PSS
PSS

2016 21 PSS
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PSS PSS
PSS
PSS 208,853,893
PSS
420,433,143
PSS
2018
1.128 2017  1.004
2018 2017
10,930,000 31,730,000
7,595,000 5,177,000
(360,000) (1,118,000)
(10,760,000)  (24,859,000)
7,405,000 10,930,000
PSS
PSS
2018 2017
8,250,000 7,500,000
35,380,000 34,630,000
- 1,125,000
1,250,000 1,125,000
1,130,000 1,005,000
125,000 -
125,000 -
46,260,000 45,385,000
750,000 750,000 1,150,000 PSS
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(b)
SFRS(1)s 2018
2.1
©
25.
2018 2017
2.0 2017 1.5 240,900 180,372
1.5 2017 1.5 180,675 180,379
2018 2018 12 31 1.5
2018 12 31
2018 12 31 2.0
2019 12 31
26.
2018 2017 2018 2017
476 735 45 258
58 20 12 (39)
9) (276) - 174)
® ® - -
490 476 57 45
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27.
2012 12 1,800,000,000 5.125
100
2012 18 500,000,000 5.125
100
5.125
2022 12 2022 10 18
2017 12 2017 10 18
2017
45,746,000 46,505,000 2017 13
2017 12 12,777,000
12,847,000 2017 18 2017 10 19
2017 12 2017 10 19
28.
@
2018 2017

61,682 45,388
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2018 2017 2018 2017
2,550 1,016 330 55
2,195 461 55 -
4,745 1,477 385 55

2018 2017
16,686 13,826
16,686 10,278

126 646
33,498 24,750
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@
2018 2017 2018 2017

105,941 - - -

- 103,852 - -

2,320 4,773 752 15,596
126,004 879,577 125,679 870,777
234,355 988,202 126,431 886,373
(5.203) (2,154) (550) (522)
(16,151) (2,611) - -
(21,354) (4,765) (550) (522)

213,001 983,437 125,881 885,851
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2017
2018 2017 2018 2017
2,130 9,834 1,259 8,859
(2,130) (9,834) (1,259) (8.859)
2017
2017
2018 2017
1,831 -
(1,831) -
- 1,806
- (1,806)
100

8,719,000 2017 10,790,000
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2018 12 31 2018
2018 12 31
84,768 91,634 50,325 106,931 333,658
(10,557) (71,318) (50,264)  (106,931)  (239,070)
74,211 20,316 61 - 94,588
2018
91,732 73,219 20,916 66,289 252,156
* (7,968) (65,019) (20,632) (65,797)  (159,416)
83,764 8,200 284 492 92,740
* 2018 SFRS(1)s 3,163,000
2.1
SFRS(1)
12
16
2017 12 31 156,253 129,496
SFRS(I)s 2.1 3,163 -
2018 159,416 129,496
79,671 24,209
(19) -
®) 1,090
2018 12 31 239,070 154,795
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2017
12,233
283
212
294
13,022
2017 2017
184,033 136,846
103,593 2,561
(131,348) 487)
(25) (9,424)
156,253 129,496
156,253,000
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292,807 1,377 293 -
231,475 580,139 - -
1,654 1,654 250,187 -
4,900 3,669 10,746 1,492
530,836 586,839 261,226 1,492
304,902 1,904 482 -
231,960 230,253 579,576 -
1,586 1,586 241,568 -
2,033 1,031 85 -
540,481 234,774 821,711 -
202,074 - - -
1,654 1,654 250,187 -
203,728 1,654 250,187 -
402,666 - - -
1,586 1,586 241,568 -
404,252 1,586 241,568 -
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®
2018 2017
1,038,570 1,216,000
7,781,345 7,441,558
8,819,015 8,657,558
12% 14%
2018 2017 12 31
@
()
()
()
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183,137 - 37,994 221,131
180,643 - 36,656 217,299
2018 2017
36,656 43,129
(1,475) (585)
1,991 -
- (5,888)
822 -
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2018 2017 2018 2017
4,465,650 - 4,077,846 -
- 4,069,666 - 3,745,429
221,131 - - -
- 217,299 - -
1,333,047 1,523,288 447,873 637,918
2018 2017
1,392 2,176
1,107 1,171
2,499 3,347
(2,687) (3,150)
(19,870) (18,424)
(22,557) (21,574)
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31.

SDC

SDC
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2018 2017
1,425 1,222
560 375
1,985 1,597
75 84
15,714 14,692
29 203
2,995 6,690
18,813 21,669
20,798 23,266
6,100 6,839
192 178
1,652 1,259
7,944 8,276
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EBITDA
| *
2018
1,678,987 - - 1,678,987
834,235 - - 834,235
23,453 767 5,967 30,187
- - (4,174) (4,174)
2,536,675 767 1,793 2,539,235
EBITDA 1,260,702 (6,852) (24,175) 1,229,675
3,959 - - 3,959
(290, 426) - (1.115) (291,541)
(23,976) - - (23,976)
5,875,922 21,067 3,811,730 9,708,719
58,252 - - 58,252
171
9,767,142
89,220 - 599 89,819
2,477 - - 2,477
444,818 2,195 9,011 456,924
1,038,570
201,573
288,728
1,985,795
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*
2017
1,588,903 - - 1,588,903
777,873 - - 777,873
23,669 469 6,167 30,305
- - (4,522) (4,522)
2,390,445 469 1,645 2,392,559
EBITDA 1,172,064 (5,983) (14,907) 1,151,174
3,385 - - 3,385
(258,038) - (1,153) (259,191)
(23,721) - - (23,721)
6,194,502 18,614 3,339,365 9,552,481
54,293 - - 54,293
52
9,606,826
120,464 - 201 120,665
2,214 - - 2,214
454,017 1,981 9,605 465,603
1,216,000
200,303
283,360
2,165,266

SFRS(1)s
2.1
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EBITDA
2018 2017
EBITDA 1,229,675 1,151,174
(9,206) (10,765)
(2,512) (109, 337)
(315,517) (282,912)
72,342 71,004
(35,913) (35,648)
3,959 3,385
118 96,285
* 292 (23,250)
943,238 860,026
2018 2017
2,538,799 2,392,182
436 377
2,539,235 2,392,559
5,016,141 5,243,700
4,013 7,302
5,020, 154 5,251,002

10

2019 21
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

Group
2018 2017
Note £'000 £'000
Revenue 4 2,539,235 2,392 559
Cost of sales {1,385,409) [1,317,709)
Gross profit 1,153,826 1.074,850
Cher operating income &,20 100,571
Interest incomes 72,342 71,004
Administrative expenses (183,307) (161,591)
Selling and distribution expenses (62,751) 157 ,928)
Hher oparating expenses {11,119 {134,707)
Operating profit 875,192 892 289
Finance costs 5 (35,913) [35.648)
Share of resuits of joint venture 3,959 3,385
Frofit before taxation & 843,238 860,026
Taxation 7 (187 ,845) (174.471)
Met profit for the financial year 755,393 685,555
Other comprehensive (less)fincome, may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:
Available-for-sale financial assets
- Fair valus loss - {7.413)
- Reclassification to profit or loss - 4321
Foreign currency exchange differences (T4) 104
Raclassification of foreign currency exchange differences - {2,858)
Other comprehensive loss for the financial year, net of tax (T4) (12.847)
Total comprehensive income for the fimancial year 755,319 672,708
Met profit attributable to:
= QOrdinary shareholders of the Company 755,393 601,000
- Holders of parpatual capital securities - a4 555
755,303 685,565
Total comprahensive income attributable to:
= Ordinary shareholders of the Company 755,319 588,153
- Holders of perpetual capital securities - 84 555
755,319 672,708
Group
2018 2017
Earnings per share attributable to ordinary sharehelders of the Company
Basic earnings per share (cants) g 6.27 5.00
Diluted earnings per share (cents) ] 6.27 4.99

A Included in cost of sales for the year anded 31 Decembear 2018 is net impairment on frade receivables (Mole 8) amounting o
358,070,000 (2017 $48,320,000).

The notes on pages 57 to 116 form an integral part of these financial statements.

48 | GENTING SINGAPORE ANNUAL REPORT 2018

112/202



EDINETOOOO
00000000 O0000O00o0OO0000O0Ono(Ess484)

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2018

Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
Mote £'000 £'000 £'000 $'000
Mon-current assets
Proparty, plant and equipment 2] 4,857,046 5,068,857 130 152
Intangible assats 10 103,313 124,812 - -
Interests in joint venture 11 58,252 54,283 - -
Interests in subsidiaries 12 - - 2,315,995 1.631.145
Deferrad tax assels 13 171 &2 = -
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss 14 221,131 = - -
Available-for-sale financial assets 15 - 217,238 - -
Trade and other receivables 16 1,543 3,040 389,562 417,644

5,241,456 5,468,353 2,705,687 2,048,841

Current assets

Asset classified as held for sale i7 - 11,786 - -
Inventorias 18 48,806 48,600 - -
Trade and other receivables 16 143,792 126,907 359,696 459150
Restricted cash 19 118,851 117276 - -
Cash and cash equivalents 12 4,214,237 3,833,804 3,328,660 2,868,836

4,525,686 4,138,473 3,688,356 3,327.986

Less: Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 20 454,764 462,741 202,074 402 666
Borrowings 21 206,375 203,137 - -
Income tax liabilities 201,573 200,303 38,448 26,865
862,712 566,181 240,522 423531
Net current assets 3,662,974 3,272,202 3,447,834 2,808.455
Total assets less current liabilities 8,904,430 8,740,645 6,153,521 4,947 296
Equity
Share capital 23 5,527,705 8,527,705 5,527,705 5,527,705
Treasury shares 23 (35,349) (44,432) [35,349) {44 433
Other reserves 24 15,242 32,556 7,977 11.085
Retained eamings/accumulated lossss) 2,273,747 1,925,729 407,332 (782,339)
Attributable to ordinary shareholders 7,781,345 7.441555 5,907,665 4,711,999
MNon-controlling interests 2 2 - -
Total equity 7,781,347 ¥ 441,560 5,907,665 4,711,299
MNon-current liabilities
Deferrad tax liabilities 13 288,728 283,360 - -
Borrowings 21 832,195 1,012,863 245,799 235,252
Provision for retirement gratuities 26 480 476 57 45
Other payables 20 1,670 2,586 - -
1,123,083 1,299,085 245,856 235,297
Total equity and non-current liabilities 8,904,430 8,740,645 6,153,521 4,947,296

The notes on pages 57 to 116 form an integral pan of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

Group
2018 2017
Note £'000 £'000

Met cash inflow from operating activities A 1,146,414 1,255,878
Investing activities
Property, plant and eguipment:

= Proceads from disposals 3,372 304

- Purchases [119,625) (76.064)
Additions of intangible assets (2,477) {2,214}
Proceeds from disposal of assets and liabilities classified as hald for sale 11,904 596,273
Proceads from disposal of financial assats at fair value through profit or loss 1,475 -
Procesads from disposal of availabla-for-sale financial aszets, nat of

transaction costs - 5,838
Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets - 67.340)
Met cash (outflow)inflow from investing activities [105,351) 456 BEGT
Financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of bonds, net of transaction costs - 238,284
Interest paid (26,862) (24,959
Dividands paid (421,575) (360,751)
Redemption of parpatual capital securities - 12,300.000)
Perpatual capital securities distribution paid - (117.875)
Repayment of bank bormowings (210,000) (192 ,500)
Repayment of finance lease liabilitics (3,574) {2,739}
Restricted cash (deposit pledged as sacurity for loan repayments and

intarast) (1,575) (14,188)
Met cash outflow from financing activities (663,586) [2.774.728)
Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 377,477 11,061,985
Beginning of financial year 3,833,904 4,963 436
Met inflow/foutflow) 37T .ATT {1,061.985)
Effects of exchange rate changes 2,856 167.,547)
End of financial year 19 4,214,237 3,833,204

The notes on pages 57 to 116 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR EMDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

MNote A - Net cash inflow from operating activities

Profit before taxation for the financial year
Adjustments for:
Froperty, plant and equipment:
= Depreciation
= Met gain on disposals
= Written off
= Impairment
Amartisation of:
= Intangible assets
- Borrowing costs
Net impairmeant on trade receivables
Impairmeant on assat classified ag held for sale
Gain on disposal of assets and liabilities classified as hald for sala
Loss on disposal of available-for-sale financial assats, nat of transaction costs
Fair value gain on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Share-based payment
Inventory write-down
Finance charges
Unrealized foreign exchange (gain)/loss
Intarest income
Share of results of joint venture
Loss on liguidation of subsidiary
Provision of retirement gratuities

Operating cash flows before movements in working capital

Changes in working capital:
{increase)/decrease in inventories
{increase)/decreasa in trade and other receivables
Increase in trade and other payables

Cash generated from cperating activities
Interest received

Met taxation paid

Retirerment gratuities paid

MNet cazh inflaw from operating activities

The notes on pages 57 to 116 form an integral pan of these inancial statements.

Group
2018 2017
£'000 £'000
943,238 BE0.026
261,541 259191
(2,978) [311)
2,522 14,855
3,208 5,971
23,976 23,721
8,857 10,104
58,070 48320
= 1.214
(118) {96,285)
= 4331
(3,097) ]
9,206 10,765
2,434 406
27,056 25,544
(4,645) 67,038
(T2,342) {71,084)
(3,959) (3,385)
= 2
58 20
339,789 300,407
1,283,027 1,160,433
(2,640) 12,504
[57,653) 12,403
51,866 65,801
(8,427) a7.708
1,274,600 1,288,141
5372 V6,258
(181,219) (T8,247)
{39) [2TE)
1,146,414 1,255,876

oOoOooodn
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Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

Group

2018

Beginning of financial year
Principal payments

Mon-cash changes

- Additions

- Forgign exchange movemen|

- Amaortisation of borrowing cozts

End of financial year

2017

Beginning of financial year
Principal paymenis

Mon-cash changes

- Additions

- Foreign exchangs movement

- Amortization of borrowing costs

End of financial year

The notes on pages 57 to 116 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Bank Finance
borrowings leases Bonds Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
978,103 2,645 235,252 1,216,000
{210,000} (3,574) - (213,574}
- 16,938 - 16,938
- 149 10,200 10,349
8,510 - 347 &,857
776,613 16,158 245,799 1,038,570
1,180,572 3,443 - 1,164,015
(182,500) [2,739) - (185,238)
- 2,253 238,284 240,537
- 32 (3,105) 3,417}
10,031 - 73 10,104
978,103 2,645 235,252 1,216,000
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

GEMERAL

Genting Singapore Limited is listed on the Main Board of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited
["SGX-ST").

Cn 1 June 2018, the Company re-domiciled and transferred its registration from the Isle of Man to Singapora
{the “Re-Domiciliation™), and changed its name from Genting Singapore PLC to Genting Singapore Limited.

The address of the Company’s registerad office is 10 Sentosa Gateway, Resorts Word Sentosa, Singapore
98270,

The Company's principal activity is that of an imvestment holding company. The principal aclivities of the
Company's subsidiaries include the development and operation of integrated resort, operation of casinos,
provision of sales and marketing support sarvices to leisure and hospitality related businessas and investments.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
21 Basis of preparation

The financial astatements have been prepared in accordance with Singapore Financial Reporting Standards
{International) ("SFRS{)s™) under the historical cost convention, except as disclosed in the accounting
policies balow.

Following the Re-Domiciliation, the Group has adopted SFRS(l)2 on 1 January 2018, Thase financial
statements for the year endad 31 Decambar 2018 are the first set of financial statements the Group
preparad in accordance with SFRS(js. The Group's previcusly issued financial statements for paricds
up to and including the financial year ended 31 December 2017 were preparad in accordance with
International Financial Raporting Standards (*IFRSs™), including International Accounting Standards and
Interpratations adopted by the International Accounting Standard Board. SFRS{l)s comprise standards and
interpratations that are eguivalant to IFRSs. Financial statemants that have been prepared in accordance
and complied with IFRSs are deamed to have also complied with SFRS(l)s. The Company elected not
to prasant the separate statement of comprehensive income and the separate statement of cash flows
for the financial year anded 31 December 2018 since thase were not mandatory subsegueant o the
Ra-Domiciliation.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with SFRS{l)s raquires management to axarcise its
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. It also requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates and assumplions. The areas invelving a higher dagres of judgement or
complexity, or areas whare assumplions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are
disclosed in Mote 3.

GENTING SINGAPORE ANNUAL REPORT 2018 | 57

121/202



EDINETOOOO
00000000 O0000O00o0OO0000O0Ono(Ess484)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

2. SIGNIFICANT ACGOUNTING POLIGIES (CONTINUED)
21 Basis of preparation (Continued)
{a) Interpretations and amendments to published standards effective in 2018

On 1 January 2018, the Group has adopted the new SFRS()s that are effective for financial year
beginning on or after 1 January 2018:

. SFRSI 2 Financial Instruments
* SFRSI) 15 Revenue from Confracts with Customers

The Group's assessmeant of the impact ansing from the adoption of SFRS() 2 and SFRS() 15 (the
“MNew SFRS(ls") ara sat out below.

Classification and measurement of financial assets

On 1 January 2018, the Group's financial instruments amounting to $217,299,000 that were
previcusgly classified as avallable-for-sale financial assets as at 31 December 2017 have been
reclassified to financial assets at fair valee through profit or loss as they did not meet the criteria to
be classified either as fair value through other comprehensive income or at amorlised cost. Related
fair value reserve of 14,2587 000 has been transferred to retained eamings on 1 January 2018,

Impairment of financial assats

The new impairment model requires the recognition of impairment provisions based on expectad
cradit losses rather than only incurred credit losses. Based on the assessments undartaken,
the Group has provided for an additional impairment allowance of $3,163,000 relating to trade
raceivables as at 31 December 2017, This has been recognised in retained earmings as of
1 January 2018,

Revanue recognition

The New SFRS{)s establish a single comprehansive mode! for entities 1o use in accounting for
revanue arising from confracts with customers, An entity recognises revenus when {or ash a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘confrol’ of the goods or senices underlying the
particular parformance obligation iz transferred to the customar.

Under the New SFRS()z, complimentary goods or services provided by the Group is allocated to
the appropriate revenus type based on the goods or services providad, at the standatonea salling
price of each good or sarvice, Loyalty points are awarded to customers under the Group's loyally
programme which entitle them to redesm goods and services. Upon redemption, the standalone
selling price of each good or =ervice is allocated to the respective revenue type.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR EMDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a) Interpretations and amendments to published standards effective in 2018 {Continued)

Revanue recognition (Continuead)

The retrospective adoption has resulted in comparative figures included in revenue being restated
with total revenue remaining unchanged (2018:; 170,372,000

Effect of
As previously  the New
stated SFRS({l)= As restated
Group £'000 £'000 £'000
2017
Gamning 1,746,217 (157 .314) 1,588,903
Mon-gaming and others 646,342 157,314 803.656

2,392,559 2,302,859

Presentation of contract liabilities

The Group has also changed the presentation of certain amounts in rade and other payables as at
31 December 2017 on adopting the New SFRS{l)s. Contract liabilities amounted to $167,832,000
(Mote 20} and was previously presented as “deferred income”, “other payables™ and "retention
monies and deposits” of 366,156,000, 579,695,000 and 511,988,000 respectivaly.

Thera was no change to the statement of financial position of the Group as at 1 January 2017
arizing from the retrospective adoption.

(b) Interpretations and amendments to published standards effective in 2019 and after
Below are the mandatory standards, ameandments and interpretations to existing standards that
have been published, and are relevant for the Group's accounting periods beginning on o after

1 January 2019, which the Group has not early adopted:

. SFRS{l) 16 Leases
- SFRS() INT 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

2. SIGNIFICANT ACGOUNTING POLIGIES (CONTINUED)
21 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b} Interpretations and amendments to published standards effective in 2019 and after
(Continued)

The Group anticipates that the adoption of these new standards will ot have a material impact
on the financial statements of the Group excapt for the following:

SFRS(l) 16 Leases

SFRS) 16 will result in almost all leases being recognised on the stalement of financial position,
as the distinction betwean operating and finance leases iz removed. Undar the new standard,
an asset (the right to use the lease item} and a financial liability to pay rentals are recognised.
The only exceplions are short-term and low-value leases. The accounting for lessors will not
significantly change.

The Group will apply the standard from its mandatory adeption date of 1 January 2019 using the
simplified transition approach and will not restate comparative amounts for the year prior to first
adoption. Right-of-use assets will be measured at the amount of the lease liability on adoption
{adjusted for any prepaid or accrued lease expanses).

The standard will affect primarily the accounting for the Group's operating leases, As at the
reporiing date, the Group has non-cancellable operafing lease commitments of 54,745,000
{Mote 28).

The Group has assessed thal the adoption of the new standard will not have significant impact
on tha Group's financial statements. However, some additional disclosures will be raquired from

next financial year,

Thara are no other standards that are not yat effective that would be expected to have a matarial impact
on the entity in the current or foresseable future reporting periods.

2.2 Group accounting
{a) Subsidiaries
n Consolidation
Subsidiariss arg entiies (including special purpose entities) over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when the Group is exposad to, or has rights o,

varigble returns from its involvemeant with the entity and has the ability to affect those retums
through its power over the antily.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.2  Group accounting {Continued)
(a) Subsidiaries (Continuad)
il Consolidation (Continued)

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group
and are deconsoclidated from the date that contrel ceases. All intercompany transactions,
balances and unrealised gains on tranzactions batweean the Group entities are eliminated.
Unraalizad lozses are also eliminated undess the transaction provides evidence of an
impairmant indicator of the transferred asset. Where necassary, accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed to ensure consistency with the policies adoptad by the
Group.

Mon-controlling intarests are that part of the net results of cperations and of net assats of
a subsidiary attributable to the interests which are not owned directly or indiractly by the
equity holders of the Company. Thay are shown separately in the conzsolidated statement
of comprehensive income, statemant of changes in equity and the statemeant of financial
position. Total comprehensive income is attributed to the non-controlling interests based on
their respective interests in a subsidiary, even if this results in the non-contrelling interests
having a deficit balance.

iy Acquigitions

The acquisition method of accounting is uged to account for business combinations by
the Group, Under this method, the cost of an acquisition of a subsidiary or business is
measurad as the fair value of the assats given, equity instruments issued and liabilities
incurred or assumead at the date of acquigiion. The cost of acguisition alzo includes the
fair value of any contingent consideration arrangamant.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, previously held equity interest in the
acquires is re-measured fo fair value at the acquisition date and any corresponding gain
or loss is racognised in the profit or loss.

Acquisition-ralated costs are expanzed as incurrad.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquizition date.

On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group recognises any non-controling intarast in
the acquiree at the date of acquisiticn either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest™s
proportionate share of the acquires’s identifiable net assets,

The excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the Group's share of the
identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill (see accounting policy note on
intangible assets). If the cost of acquisition is less than the fair value of the net assats of
the subsidiary acquired, the differance is recognised directly in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCGOUNTING POLIGIES (CONTINUED)
2.2 Group accounting (Continued)
{a) Subsidiaries {Continued)
i} Disposals

When a change in the Group's ownership interest in a subsidiary results in a loss of control
over the subsidiary, the assets and lisbilities of the subsidiary including any goodwill are
derecognised. The profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggragate of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair valus of any retained
interest; and {iij the previous carrying amouwnt of the assels (including goodwill), and the
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-confrofling interests. Amounts pravioushy recognised
in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity are also reclassified to profit or loss
or transterred to retained earnings if required by a specific standard.

Any retained equity interest in the entity is remeasured at fair value, The difference between
the carrying amount of the retained interest at the date when control is lost and its fair
value is recognised in profit or loss,

b} Joint ventures

The Group's interests in joint ventures are accounted for in the consolidated financial statements
using the eguity method of accounting. Equity accounting involves recognising the Group's share
of the post-acquisition results of joint ventures in profit or loss and its share of post-acquisition
movemeants within resarve is recognised in other comprehensive income. These post-acquisition
movements and distributions are adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment.

The Group recognises the portion of gains o losses on the sale of assets by the Group 1o the
joint vanturas that is attributable to the other venturers. The Group does not recognise ita share
of profits or loszes from joint ventures that resuits from the purchase of assaets by the Group
from joint ventures, until it resells the assets to an independeant party. However, if a loss on the
transaction provides avidence of a reduction in the net realisable value of current assels or an
impairment loss, the loss is recognised immeadiately in profit or loss,

Where necessary, in applying the eguity method, adjustments have been made to the financial
statements of joint ventures to ensure consistency of accounting policies with those of the Group.

{e)  Transactions with non-controlling interests

Changes in the Group's ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of contral
ovar the subsidiary are accounted for as transactions with equity owners of the Company. Any
difference batwean the change in the carrying amounts of the non-controlling interest and the fair
value of the consideration paid or received is recognised within eguity attributable to the equity
halders of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

2. SIGMIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [CONTINUED)
2.3 Revenue recognition

Bevenue comprizges the fair value of the considaration received or receivable for the sale of goods and
senvices in the ordinary course of the Group's activities. Revenua attributable to the award of benafits
measured at fair value is deferred until they are ulilised. Revenue is shown as net of goods and sarvicas
tax, and discounts and after eliminating sales within the Group.

Gaming revenus represents net house takings, which is the aggregate of wins and lossas arising from
gaming play, and iz reportad after deducticn of goods and services tax, commissions, discounts and
loyalty points awarded to customers. Complimentary goods or services providad by the Group is aliocatad
to the appropriate revenue type based on the goods and services provided, at the standalone selling
prica of each good and sarvice.

Hotel rcom revenue is recognised at the time of room occupancy.

Attraction revenue is recognised when tickets are used. Revenua from annual passes is amortised cvar
the period of thair validity.

Food and beverage and retail sales are recognised when goods are delivered or sarvices are renderad
to the customers.

Rental income from ratail outlets, net of any incentivas given to the lessee, is recognised on a straight-
lina basis over the period of the respective lease tarms.

2.4  Interest income
Interest income is recognized on a time-proportion basis using the effactive interest mathod.
2.5 Property, plant and equipmeant

All property, plant and equipment except for freehold land is initially recognised at cost and is
subsaquentiy carriad at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items including
borrowing costs and realised gains or losses on gualifying cash flow hedges incurred spacifically for the
construction or development of the asset. Depraciation is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate the depreciable amounts of property, plant and equipment less their estimated residual values
over their estimatad useful lives ag follows:

Estimated useful lives

Freahold properties and improvements 30-60 years
Leasahold land, properties and improvements 30-99 years
Machinery, computer eguipment, fixtures, fittings and motor vehicles 2-5 years
Fublic attractions, theme park equipment, mechanical and

electrical system and aircraft 10-30 years
Exhibit animals 5-15 years
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2048

2. SIGNIFICANT ACGOUNTING POLIGIES (CONTINUED)
2.5 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Freehold land is stated at cost and is not depreciated. Leasehold land is depreciated over the lease
pariod of 80 to 99 years, Leasehold properties and improvemeants are depreciated over 30 to 60 years.

The depreciation of leasahold land is capitalised during the period of construction as part of construction-
in-progress in property, plant and eguipment until the construction is completed.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic bensfits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured retiably, All other repair and maintenance costs are
charged to profit or loss during the financial year that they are incurred.

Construction-in-progress consists of assets and property under construction. Assets include acquired
computer hardwarne, computer software cence and implementation cost incured in bringing the computer
system 1o use,

Construction-in-progress iz stated at cost and is not depreciated. Costs include borrowing costs and
other directly related expenditure incurred during the pericd of construction and up to the completion
of the construction. Construction-in-progress relating to assets and property under construction is
reclassified to the respective categories of property, plant and equipmeant upon completion of the project.

For major construction-in-prograss, the cost is supported by qualified quantity surveyors® certification
of work done.

The assets' residual valuas and useful lives are reviewead, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting
date.

Wheare an indication of impairment aexists, the recoverable amount of the asset s assessad and if it
is estimated to be lass than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the assels is written down

immediately to its recoverable amount (s2e accounting policy note on impairmeant of non-financial assets).

Gains and Iosses on disposal are determined by comparing procesds with carrying amount and are
includad in profit or loss,

26 Intangible assets
{a) Goodwill on acquisition
Goodwill on acquisition represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the

Group's share of the net identifiable assets of the acquired subsidiary at the date of acqguisition.
Goodwill on acquisition of subsidiaries is included in intangible assets.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

2. SIGHIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [CONTINUED)
2.6 Intangible assets [Continued)
(a) Goodwill on acquisition (Continued)

Goodwill on acquisition of subsidiaries is tested at least annually for impairment and carried at
cost less accumuiated impairment losses. Impairment losses on goodwill are not reversed. Gains
and losses on the disposal of an entity include the canrying amount of goodwill relating to the
antity sold.

Goodwill is alfocated to cash-genarating units ("CGUs"™) for the purpose of impairment tasting.
The allocation is made to those CGUs or groups of CGUs that are expectad to benafit from the
busziness combination in which the goodwill arcsa, identified according to operating segment.

(b) Trademarks and tradenames

Trademarks and tradenames are initially recognized at cost and are subsequently carriad at cost
lagz any accumulated impairment losses. Trademarks and tradenames have an indefinite usaful
life as it iz maintained through continuous marketing and upgrading. Trademarks and tradenames
are tested annually for impairment. Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount
of trademarks and tradenames are assessad and written down immediately to its recoverable
amount (see accounting policy note on impairment of non-financial assats).

(=] Licences

Casino and theme park licences are initially recognised at cost and subsequently carried at cost
lesz accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Such cost iz amortised using
the straight-line meathod over 3 to 30 years, which iz the shorter of its economic usaful life and
periods of contractual right. The amortisation period and amortizsation method are reviewad at
each reporting date. The effects of any revigsion are recognised in profit or loss whan changas
ariza. Amortization is recognizad in profit or loss unlegs the amount can ba capitalised as part of
construction-in-progress. Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of licence
is assassed and written down immeadiately to its recoverable amount.

(el) Computer software
Computer software that does not form an integral part of other related hardware is treatad as an

intangible assel. Costs that are directly associated with development and acquisition of computer
goftware programmes by the Group are capitalised ag intangible assets when the following criteria

are mat:

- it Is technically feasible to complate the software product so that it will be available for uss;
- managearmant intends to complate the software product and use or gell it;

- there is an ability to use or 2ell the software product;

GENTING SINGAPORE ANNUAL REPORT 2018 | 65

129/202



EDINETOOOO
00000000 O0000O00o0OO0000O0Ono(Ess484)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

2. SIGNIFICANT ACGOUNTING POLIGIES (CONTINUED)
2.6 Intangible assets (Continued)

{d) Computer software (Continued)

. it can be demonstrated how the software product will generate probable future ecoenomic
benefits,
. adegquate technical, financial and other resources o complete the development and (o use

or sall the software product are available; and

* the expenditure attributable to the software product during its development can be reliably
measured.

Direct costs include staff costs of the software development team and an appropriate portion
of relevant overheads. Costs associated with maintaining computer software programmes are
recognised as an axXpenss wWnen ncurred,

Expenditure that enhances or extends the performance of computer software programmes beyond
their original specifications is recognised as a capital improvement and added to the original cost
of the software.

Computer soflware are subseqguently carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses. These costs are amortised to profit or loss using the straight-line
method over their estimated useful life of 10 years.

2.7 Investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures

Investments in subsidianes and jeint ventures are carriad at cost 858 accumulated impairment losses in
the Group's and Company's statements of financial position. On disposal of investments in subsidiaries
and joint ventures, the differences between disposal proceeds and the carrying amounts of the
invastmants are recognized in profit or loss, Where an indication of impairment axists, the carrying amount
of the investment is assessad and written down immediately to its recoverable amount (588 accounting
policy note on impairment of non-financial asssts).

2.8 Impairment of non-financial assets

Agzats that have an indafinite useful fife, including goodwill, are not subject to amertisation and are
tested at least annually for impairment, Assets that are subject to amortisation and depreciation, and
invastments in subsidiaries and joint ventures are reviewsd for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carmying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverabla
amcunt is the highar of an asset's fair valua less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash flows (CGUs). Mon-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewesd
for possible reversal of the impairment at each reparting date,
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2. SIGHIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [CONTINUED)
2.8 Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

Impairment iz chargad to profit or loss. Impairment is reversed only to the extent that the reversal doas
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of any accumulated amaortisation
or depreciation) had no impairment been recognisad in prior years for the same assat. The reverzal is
recognised in profit or loss. Impairment on goodwill is not reversad once recognised.

2.9 Financial assets
Tha accounting for financial assets before 1 January 2018 are as follows:
(a) Classification

Tha Group classifies its financial assets in the following categorias: at fair value through profit or
logs, loans and recaeivables, and available-for-sale. The clagsification depends on the purpose for
which tha financial assets were acquired. Management determines the classification of its financia
azsets at initial recognition.

fil Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category has two sub-categories: financial assets held for trading, and those
dasignated at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition. A financial asset is
classified az held for trading if it is acquired principally for the purpose of saliing in the short
tarm. Financial assats designated as at fair value through profit or logs on initial recognition
are those that are managed and their performances are evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with the investment strategy of the Group.

fiiy Loans and receivables

Loanz and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market, They are included in current assats,
except for thoze with maturities or expected 1o be realised later than 12 months after
the reporting date, which are classified as non-current assets. Loans and receivables
ara prasented ag ‘trade and othar receivables’, ‘restricted cash' and ‘cash and cazh
equivalentz” in the statements of financial position.

i) Avaifable-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated in this
category or not classified in any of the other categories. They are included in non-currant
azsats unless the investment matures or management intends to disposa of within 12
months after the reporting date.

GENTING SINGAPORE ANNUAL REPORT 2018 | 67

131/202



EDINETOOOO
00000000 O0000O00o0OO0000O0Ono(Ess484)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTIMUED)
2.9 Financial assets (Continued)
{b)  Recognition and derecognition

Purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade date - the date on which the
Group commits o purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownearship.,

On disposal of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount and the sales
proceads is recognised in profit or loss. Any amount in other comprehansive income relating to
the asset is reclassifed to profit or loss.

{z) Initial measurement

Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs except for financial
assets carried at fair value through profit or loss, which are recognised at fair value, and transaction
costs are expensad in profit or loss,

{d) Subsequent measurement

Available-for-sale financial assats and financial assets at fair value throuwgh profit or loss are
subssquently carried at fair value, Loans and recelvables are subsequently carried at amaortised
cost using the effective interest methoed. Changes in the fair values of the financial assets at fair
valua through profit or loss including the effects of currency translation, interest and dividends,
are recognised in profit or loss when the changas anse,

Interest and dividend income on available-for-sale financial assels are recognised separately
in incoma. Changes in the fair values of available-for-zale debt securities (i.e. moneatary items)
denominated in foreign currencies are analysed into currency franslation differences on the
amortised cost of the securities and other changes; the currency transiation differences are
recognised in profit or loss and the other changses are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the fair value reserve. Changes in the fair values of available-for-sale
equity securities {i.e. non-monetary items) are recognisad in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the fair value reserve, together with the related currency translation differences.

{e) Impairment

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired.

For loans and receivables, an impairment is established when there is objective evidence that the
Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of the financial
aszets. Adverse changes in background, reputation and financial capability of the debtor, and
default or significant delay in paymants are objective evidence that receivables are impaired. The
carrying amount of loans and receivables is reduced through the use of an impairment allowance
account. The amount of the impairment is the difference betwean the asset’s carrying amount
and the presant value of astimated future cash flows, discounted at the affective interast rate.

B8 | GENTING SINGAPORE ANNUAL REPORT 2018

132/202



EDINETOOOO
00000000 O0000O00o0OO0000O0Ono(Ess484)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

2. SIGHIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [CONTINUED)
2.9 Financial assets (Continued)
(e} Impairment {Continued)

Whan the asset becomes uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account. Subsaguent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are recognised against the same line items in profit
or loss.,

The impaiment allowance is reduced through profit or loss in a subseguent period whean the
ameount of impairmeant loss decreases and the related dacrease can be objactively measured. The
carrying amount of the asset previously impaired is increased to the extent that the new carrying
amount does not excesd the amortised cost had no impairment been recognised in prior periods.

For debt socurities classified as availabla-for-sale, the Group uges the criteria as abowve for loans
and recaivablas. For aguity sacurities clazsified as availabla-for-gale, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is taken as evidance that the sacurities are
impairad. If any such evidance exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss
that was previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss. The
cumulative loss is measured as the difference between the acquisition cost (net of any principal
repayment and amortizsation) and the current fair value, less any impairment loss previously
recognizad as an expense in profit or loss. Impairmeant losses recognised in profit or loss on equity
securities are not revaersed through profit or loss.

The accounting for financial assets from 1 January 2018 are ag follows:
(a)  Classification and measurament

Tha Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories: amortized cost and fair valua
through profit or loss. The classification depends on the Group's business modal for managing the
financial assets as well as the contractual tarms of the cash flows of the financial as=zet. Financial
azsets with embedded derivatives are considered in thair entirety when determining whether their
cash flows are solely payment of principal and intarest. The Group reclassifies debt instruments
when and only when its business model for managing those assets changes.

(b) Recognition and derecognition

Purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade date - the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sall the asset. Financial assets are derecognisad when the rights
to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have been transfarrad and the
Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownearship,

On disposal of a debt instrument, the difference between the carrying amount and the sale
proceads |8 recognised In profit or loss. Any amount previously recognisad in other comprehensive
incoma relaling to that assel iz reclassified to profit or loss,
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACGOUNTING POLIGIES (CONTINUED)
2.9 Financial assets (Continued)
{c) Initial recognition

Al initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a
financial azsat not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value
through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss,

([d) Subsequent measurement

Debt instrumeants mainly comprise of cash and cash aguivalents, frade and other raceivables,
guoted and unguoted debt securities.

Debt instruments that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
reprasent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. A gain or
lozs on a debt instrument that is subsequently measured at amortised cost and is not part of a
hedging relaticnship is recognized in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired.
Interest income from these financial assets is included in interest income using the effective
interest rate method.

Debt instruments that are held for trading as well as those that do not mest the criteria for
classification as amortised cost or fair value through other comprahansive income are classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. Movement in fair values and interest income is
recogrisad in profit or loss in the period in which it arises and prasentad in otheér gains and losses.

le) Impairment

The Group assessas on a forward looking basiz the expected cradit lozssas associated with its
debt financial assets carried at amortised cost. The Group measures the loss allowance at an
amount equal to liletime expected credit losses.

210 Inventories

Invantories are statad at the lower of cost and net realisable value, Cost is determined using the waightad
average method. Cost of inventories comprises all cost of purchase and other costs incwred in bringing
the inventorias to their prasent location and condition. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable salling expenses.

70 | GENTING SINGAPORE ANNUAL REPORT 2018

134/202



EDINETOOOO
00000000 O0000O00o0OO0000O0Ono(Ess484)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTIMUED)
2.11 Government grants

Grants from the govemment are recognised as a recelvable at their fair value when there is reasonable
asswrance that the grant will be received and the Group will comply with all the attached conditions.

Approved government grants relating to qualitying expenditure are deferred and recognised in profit or
loss over the period necessary to maich them with the costs that they are intended to compensate,
unless they are directly attributable to the construction of an item of property, plant and equipment, in
which case, they are set off against the assat.

Governmant grants relating to expanses are prasentad as a daduction of tha related expenss,
2.12 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and bank balances (net of bank ocvardrafts), deposits held at call
with banks and olher short term highly liquid investments with original maturities of 12 months or less.

2.13 Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsaguently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method,

2.14 Employes benefits
(a) Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employes benefits include wages, salaries, bonus and paid annual leave. Thase banefits
are recognised in profit or loss when incurred and are measured on an undiscounted basis, unless
they can be capitalised as part of the cost of a sell-constructed asset.

(b}  Defined contribution plans

The Group contributes to defined contribution plans for some of its employees under which the
Group pays fiked contributions into the employess provident funds in certain countries in which
it operates on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis and will have no legal or constructive
ohbligations to pay further contributions if those funds do not hold sufficient assets to pay all
employveas the benafits relating to sarvices provided in the current and prior periods. The Group's
contributions to such plans are recognised in profit or loss as employes benefits expense whean
they are due, unless thay can be capitalised as part of the cost of a self-constructed asset.

(¢} Long-tarm employee banefits

The Group provides refirement gratuities under a retirement gratuity scheme that was establishad
in 1921 by the Board of Diractors of the ultimate holding corporation for certain exscutives and
executive directors of the Company and certain subsidiaries. The level of retirement gratuities
payabile is in relation to the past services rendered, The grafuity iz calculated based on employess'
basic salary for each completed year of service. Such benefits vest on the employees when thay
reach retirement age.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACGOUNTING POLIGIES (CONTINUED)
214 Employee benefits (Continued)
{c) Long-term employee benefits (Continued)

The prasent value of the retirement gratuities is determined by discounting the amount payable by
reference to market yields at the reporting date on high quality corporate bonds or govarnment
bond which have terms to maturity approximating the terms of the related liability. Employes
turmover is also factored in arriving at the level of provision for retirement gratuities. The differances
arising from the application of such discounting as well as any past service costs and the effects of
any curtaiimeants or settliements, if any, are recogrised immediately in profit or loss, Such refirement
gratuities payable are classified as current kabilities where it is probable that a payment will be
madea within the next 12 months.

{d) Share-based compensation benefits

The Group operates aquity-settied, share-based compensation plans, where shares are issusd
by the Company to eligible executives and directors of the Group, The valug of the employes
services received in exchange for the grant of the shares is recognized as an expense with a
corresponding entry to reserves over the vesting period. The total amount to be expensed over
the westing pericd is determined by reference to the fair value of the shares granted at the grant
date and the number of shares vested by vasting date, sxcluding the impact of any non-market
vesting conditions. Non-market vesting conditions are included in the estimates of the number of
shares that are expected to become vested.

The fair value of services received from the employess of the Company and its subsidiaries in
aexchange for the grant of the shares are essentially services rendered in the past, are charged
out to profit or loss immediately, unless they can be capitalised as part of the cost of a self-
constructed asset. Befora the end of the vesting peried, at each reporting date, the Compary will
reviss its estimates of the number of shares that are expected to be vestad at the vesting date
and it recognizas the impact of this revision in profit or loss with a corresponding adjustment to
aquity. After the vesting date, no adjustment to profit or loss is made. For performance shares that
are axpected to ba granted, due to sarvices received before grant date, the total amount to bea
recognised over the vesting period is determinad by reference 1o the fair value of the performance
shares at the end of the reporting period, until the date of grant has been established. Upon
vasting of sharez, reservas ralating to the vested shares will be trangferred to retained earnings.

Where the terms of a share-based compensation plan are modified, the expensza that has yet to
be recognised for the award, is recognised over the remaining vesting period as if the terms had
notb been modified, Additional expense is recognised for any increass in the total fair value of the
share due to the modification, as measured at the date of the madification.
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2. SIGHIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ([CONTINUED)
2.15 Provisions

Provisions are recognised whan the Group has a present legal or constructive abligation as a result of
a past evaent. It iz more likely than not that an cutflow of resouwrces embodying economic benafits will
be required to settle the obligation, and the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

Frasent obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognised and measured as provisions. An
onerous contract iz considerad to exist where the Group has a confract under which the unavoidable
costs of meating the cbligations under the contract excead the econcmic banefits recaeived under it.

216 Borrowings and borrowing costs

Borowings are classified as current fiabilities unlesz the Group has an unconditional right to defar
settlemant of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date, in which case thay are presentad
as non-current liabilities.

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair wvalue (net of tranzaction costs) and subsaquently stated at
amortised cost. Any differeance between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings uging the affective interast method.

Borrowing costs including commitment fees on credit facilities, amortisaticn of transaction costs and
interest axpansas are recognisad in profit or loss unless they ane directly attributable to the construction-
in-prograss, in which case, they are capitalised as part of the cost of the salf-constructed asset during
the construction period.

217 Leases
(a) When the Group is the lessee - Operating leases

Leases where a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the
lessore are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentives racaived from the lessors) are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
period of the leaze.

(b}  When the Group is the lessee - Finance leases

Leases of property, plant and eguipment where the Group has substantially all the risks and
rewards of cwnership are clagsified as finance leases. Finance leaszes are capitalized at the lease's
commencemeant at the lower of the fair value of the leased assets and the presant value of the
minimum leass payments. Lease payments are allocated batwean liability and finance charges.
The interest element of the finance costs is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as
o produce a constant periodic rate of interast on the remaining balance of the lability for each
perod. The proparty, plant and equipment acquired undar a finance lease is depreciated over the
shorter of the estimated usaful life of the asset and the lease term.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACGOUNTING POLIGIES (CONTINUED)
217 Leases (Continued)
{c) When the Group is the lessor = Operating leases

Leases where the Group retains substantially all risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
opearating leases. Rental income from operating leasas (nat of any incantives given to the lesseaes)
is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the leasa term.

Initial direct costs incurred by the Group in negatiating and arranging operating leases are added
to the carrying amount of the leased assets and recognisad as an expense in profit or loss over
the lease term an the same basis as the lease income,

Lease incentives are recognised as other receivables where such incentives are provided by the
Group and recognised net of lease income in profit or loss over the lsase term on the same basis
as the lease income. Contingent rents are recognised as income in profit or loss when earned.,

218 Income tax

The tax expensa for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except to the extent that it arises from a transaction or event which is recognised, in the same or difterent
period, in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. Tax relating to transactions or events
recognised in other comprehansive incame or directly in equity is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity respectively.

{a) Current tax

Current tax is calculated according to the tax laws of each jurisdiction in which the Company and
its subsidiaries operate and includes all taxes based upon the taxable income and is measurad
using the tax rates and tax laws which are applicable at the reporting date.

{b) Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised for all temparary differances ansing betweean the tax bases of assatls
and liabllities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements, However, if the deferred
tax arises from initial reacognition of an assat or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss, it is not accounted for.

Defarred tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enaclad or substantively
enacted by the reporting date and are expectad to apply when the ralated defarred income tax
aszat is realised or the deferred tax liability is settled; and based on the tax conseguences that
will follow from the manner inwhich the Group expects, at the zame reporting date, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assels or liabilities.
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2. SIGHIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [CONTINUED)
2.18 Income tax (Continued)
(b) Deferred tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary differance can be ulilisad.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising on invesiments in subsidiaries, joint
vantures and associates, excapt where the timing of the revarzal of the temporary differance is
controlled by the Group and it iz probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
forasesable future.

2.19 Share capital, treasury shares and perpetual capital securities

Crdinary shares and perpefual capital securities are clazsified as eguity when thera is no contractual
ocbligation to deliver cash or other financial assats to anothaer parson or entity or to exchange financial
aszsats or liabilities with ancthar parson or entity that are potentially unfavourable to the issuer.

Incremental costs directly atfributable o the isswe of new shares or oplions or perpetual capital securities
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceads. The proceeds receivaed net of any
directly attributable transaction costs are craedited to share capital or parpatual capital securities.

Whan shares recognized as egquity are acquired, the consideration paid, including any directly attributabla
transaction costs, ara recorded in the treasury sharas account.

When the Company purchases its own ordinary shares (“treasury shares”), they are presanted as a
deduction from total equity until they are cancelled, sold or reizsuad.

Whan treasury shares are subsequantly sold or reissued pursuant to eguity compensation plans, the cost
of treasury shares is reversed from the treasury shares account and the realized gain or loss on 2ale or
relssue, net of any directly attributable incremantal transaction costs, is recognised in eguity.

2.20 Assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale

Azzats and disposal groups are classified as held for sale and caried at the lower of carryving amount
and fair value less costs to sell if their carrying amount is recovered principally through a sale transaction
rather than through confinuing use, The assets are not depreciated or amortised while they are classified
az hald for sale, Any impaiment loss on initial classification and subsequent maasurement is recognised
as an expenze. Any subsequent increase in fair value less costs to sall (not exceading the accumulated
impairment loss that has been previously recognised) is recognisad in profit or loss.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACGOUNTING POLIGIES (CONTINUED)
2.21 Foreign currency translation
{a) Functional and presentation currency

ftems included in the financial statements of each of the Group's entities are measured using
the currency of the primary economic envirenmant in which the entity operates (“the functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented in the functional currency of the
Company which is Singapors Dollars (*27).

(k)  Transactions and balances

Foreign currancy transactions of each entity in the Group are transiated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at the closing
rates at the reporting date of monetany assets and liabiliies denominated in foreign currencies
are recognisad in profit or loss,

Mon-monatary iterms measured at fair values in foreign currencies are franslated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair values are determined.

{c)  Translation of Group entities’ financial statements

The results and financial position of afl the Group entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional currency different from the prasentation currency
are translated into the presentation cumrency as follows:

il assels and liabilities are translated at the closing rate at the reporting date;

{ii} income and expansas are translated at average exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which casa income and expanses are translated at the dates of the transactions):
and

(il all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulatad in the currency ftranslation regerve. Thesa currency translation differencas are
reclazsified to profit or loss on digposal or partial disposal of the antity giving rise to such
reserve,

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of foreign operations are treated as
aszets and Habilities of the forelgn operations and translated at the closing rate at the reporting
data.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ([CONTINUED)
2.22 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders ig recognized as a liability in the financial statemeants
in the pericd in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholdears.

2.23 Segment reporting

Cperating segments are raported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
oparating dacision-maker. Tha chief operating decigion-makes, who is responsible for allocaling resources,
making strategic decisions and asseszing performance of the cperating segmeants has bean identified as
the Exacutive Chairman, and Fresident and Chief Operating Cfficer of the Group and of tha Company.

2.24 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

The Group does not recognise a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial stataments.
A contingant liability is a pozsible cbligation that arizes from past events whosa existence will be confirmed
by uncertain future events bayond the control or a present obligation that iz not recogniged because it
is not probable that an cutflow of resources will b2 required to settle the cbligation. When a change in
the probability of an outflow of economic resources cccurs 2o that outflow is probabile, it will then be
recognised as a provision,

A contingent aszet is a possible asset that arises from past evants whoze axiztance will be confirmead
by uncartainm future events bayond the contral of the Group. The Group doas net recognize contingant
azsels but disclosas their existence where an inflow of ecenomic banefits is probable, but not virtually
cartain. When an inflow of aconomic resources is virtually certain, the asset is recognised.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates, assumptions and judgements are continually evaluated and are bazed cn historical experience and
other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonabla under the circumstances.
The Group makes eslimates and assumptions concerning the future, The resulting accounting estimates will
not necessarily equal the related actual resuits.

(a) Taxation

The Group is subjected (o income taxes in numerous jurisdictions in which the Group operates, mainly in
Singapore. Significant judgement is required in detarmining the provision far incomea taxes that includas
the estimate of the amount of capital allowances for items within the leasshold improvemeants and fixiures
and fittings asseat categories and the deductibility of certain expenzes,

Where the final tax outcome of tax liakilities iz different from the amecunts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the incomea tax liabiities and deferred tax assels and liabilities (Notes 7 and
13), where applicable, in the pariod in which such detarmination s made.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2048

3 CRITIGAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)
(b) Impairment of trade receivables

As at 31 December 2018, the Group's trade receivables amounted to $333 658,000, majority of which are
related o casing debltors, Trade receivables are grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and
days past due, with expected loss rates assassed based on the Group's historical credit loss experiance,
The Group further evaluates the expected credit loss on customers on a case-by-case basis, which will
be assessed based on indicators such as changes in financial capability of the deblor, and default or
significant delay in payments.

The Group's credit risk exposure for trade receivables is set out In Note 29(d),

4, REVENUE

Group
2018 2017
£'000 £'000
(restated)
Gaming 1,678,987 1,588,203
Mon-gaming
= Hotel rooms 225,004 222813
— Aftractions 446,145 407,008
- Other non-gaming 162,996 148,252
834,235 Frrgra
Cthers 26,013 25,783

2,539,235 2,392 559

5. FINANCE COSTS

Group
2018 2017
£'000 £'000
Interast expansa:

- Bank borrowings 21,862 21,834
- Bonds 1,637 304
- Finance lease liabilities 1,157 43
Amortigation of borrowing costs 8,857 10,104
Cithars 2,400 2,663
35,913 35,648
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Included in the profit bafore taxation are the following expenses/(income) by natura:

Group
2018 2017
£'000 £'000

Directors’ remuneration;

- Fees and mesting allowances 1,500 1,306

- Other emoluments 19,298 21.960
Employes benefits (excluding directors’ remunaration)™;

- Salaries and related costs 456,672 441,317

- Employer's contribution to defined contribution plan 46,354 44,617

- Provision of retirement gratuities 58 20

- Share-pased payment 5,651 3,700
Auditors’ remuneration:

- Pw Singapore 1,806 1.816

— Other auditors &1 &0
Non-audit fzes paid/payable to auditors 542 1,006
Duties and taxes™ 297,846 284,471
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 291,541 259,191
Amortisation of intangible assets 23,976 23,721
Met impairment on trade receivables 58,070 48,320
Invertory write-down 2,434 406
Included in other operating income:

- Gain on disposal of assels and liabilittes classified as hald for sale {118) {26,285)

- Eain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (2,978) [311)

- Fair value gain on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (3,097) -
Included In other cperating expenses:

- Write-off of property, plant and equipment 2,522 14,855

= Impairment of property, plant and egquipment 3,208 5,971

- Met foreign exchange loss 5,388 108,335

- Impairment on asset classified as held for sale - 1,214

- Loss on disposal of available-for-sale financial assets, net of

transaction costs - 4,331

Fental expenses on operating leases 4,844 3,284
Advertising and promotion 47,582 41,987
Utilities 46,293 41,955
Legal, professional and management fees 17,668 14,141

g The Greup recaived government grants of $4,936.000 (2017: $6,191,000) that wera et off agains! the qualifying
employee compensation.

Inciudes propery tax and casing tax thal is levied on the casing's gross gaming revenus.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

7. TAXATION

Group
2018 2017
£'000 £'000
Taxation for current financial year:
- Currant tas 184,101 191,197
- Defarred tax 2,831 {17.827)
186,932 173,370
(Qver)funder provision in prior financial years:
— Current tax (1,505) 26
— Deferred tax 2418 1,075
913 1,101
Total tax expanss 187,845 174,471
Reconciliation of effective tax rate
Profit befora taxation 943,238 860,026
Share of results of joint venture, net of tax (3,959) {3,3885)
Profit before taxation and share of resulls of joint venture 939,279 856,641
Tax calculated at tax rate of 17% 159,677 145,629
Tax effects of:
- Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 29,934 45,1056
= Under provision in prior financial years 913 1,101
= Differant tax rates in other countries (6,443) {2.799)
= Tax incentives (593) (409)
- Income not subject to tax (1,004) (18,655)
- Defarred fax assets not recognised 1,297 674
- Withholding tax 4,064 3.825
Total tax expense 187,845 174,471
income tax recognised directly in eguity is as follows:
Group
2018 2017
$'000 £'000
Tax credit arising from perpeatual capital securities - 6,450

B0 | GENTING SINGAPORE ANNUAL REPORT 2018

144/202



EDINETOOOO

00000000 O0000O00o0OO0000O0Ono(Ess484)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR EMDED 31 DECEMEBER 2018

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The basic and diluted earnings per ordinary share have been caloulated based on Group's net profit attributable
to ordinary shareholders divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding.

Group
2018 2017
£'000 £'000
Wet profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company 755,393 601,000
Group
2018 2017
000 ‘000
Weightad average number of ordinary shares of the Company 12,044,309 12,024,712
Adjustment for:

- Share-based compenszation plans 11,704 25,024
Adjusted weighted average number of ordinary shares of the Company 12,056,013 12,043,736
Earnings per share attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company is as follows:

Group
2018 2017
Basic earnings per share (cants) 6.27 5.00
Diluted earnings per share (cents) 6.27 4,99
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

g PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

Tha net book value of leasencld land, certain machinery and motor vehicles heid under finance leases are
§763.401,000 (2017: £783,724,000) and $15,732,000 (2017: 54 919,000} respectively. Included in additions
are machineries acquired under finance leases amounting to 16,938,000 (2017: $2,253,000).

During the financial year, the Group has drawn up plans to relire cerlain assets. The estimated useful lives
of these assets have besn revisad in accordance with the plans. The changes in estimates were applied
prospectively.

The ravision of the estimated useful lives of these assets has resulted in a $42,118,000 increase in current year's
depraciation expensa, This change in estimated useful lives is expactad to result in an increase in depraciation
expense of about 338,544,000 and $19,026,000 in financial vears 2019 and 2020, respectively. We do not
axpact this change to have a material impact on depreciation expanse for subsequent financial years.

Computer
egquipment,
fixtures and Construction-
fittings in-progress Total
Company £'000 £'000 £'000
2018
Cost
Beginning of financial year 359 - 359
Additions 29 16 45
End of financial yaar 3gg 16 404
Accumulated depreciation
Beginning of financial year 207 - 207
Dapreciation 67 = 67
End of financial year 274 = 274
Net book value
End of financial year 114 16 130
2017
Cost
Beginning and end of financial year 3589 = 3589
Accumulated depreciation
Beginning of financial year 130 - 130
Depreciation i7 = 77
End of financial yeaar 207 - 207
Net book value
End of financial year 182 - 152
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR EMDED 31 DECEMEBER 2018

10.

INTAMGIELE ASSETS

Trademarks
and Goodwill on Computer

tradenames acquisition Licences software Total
Group £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
2018
Cost
Beginning of financial year 1,057 83,049 81,162 18,556 183,824
Additions - - - 2,477 2,477
End of financial year 1,057 83,049 81,162 21,033 186,301
Accumulated amortisation
Beginning of financial year - - 47,498 11,514 59,012
Amortisation - - 22,521 1,455 23,976
End of financial year - - 70,019 12,969 82,988
Naot book value
End of financial year 1,057 83,049 11,143 8,064 103,313
2017
Cost
Beqginning of financial year 1,057 23,051 81,162 16,342 181.612
Additions - - = 2,214 2214
Disposal of subsidiary - (2} - - [
End of financial year 1,067 83,042 81,162 18,556 183,824
Accumulated amortisation
Beginning of financial year - - 24976 10,315 35,201
Amortisation - - 22,622 1,190 23,721
End of financial year - - 47,498 11,514 59,012
Net book value
End of financial year 1,057 83,049 33,664 7,042 124,812

Amortisation expense of $23,976,000 (2017, 323,721,000) has been included in cost of sales,

Goodwill is allocated 1o the Group's CGUs identified according to geographical area. A segment-level summary
of the allocation of goodwill with indefinite useful life is as follows:

Group
2018 2017
S'000 3'000
Goodwill attributable to:
Singapora 83,047 83,047
Malaysia 2 2
83,049 83,049
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

10. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Tha goodwill atiributed to the Singapore CGU mainly arose from the acquisition of the remaining 25% equity
interast in Resorts World at Sentosa Ple. Ltd. "RWSPL") which developed the first integrated resort in Singapore.
The impairment test for goodwill relating to the Singapore CGU was assessed using the value-in-use method.
Cash flow projections used in this calculation weare basad on financial budgsts approved by managament, The
cash flow projection covers a five-vear period. Cash flows beayond the five-year period were extrapolatad using
the estimated growth rate stated below. The growth rate did not exceed the long-term average growth rate for
the leisure and hospitality industry in which the CGU operates.

key assumplions used in the value-in-use calculation for 2018 include a growth rate and weighted average cost
of capital ("WACCT) of 2,0% and 7.3% (2017; 2.0%, 6.2%) respectively.

Based on the impaiment test, no impairment is required for goodwill attributed o the Singapore CGU. A
reasonably possible change in a key assumptlion on which management has based itz determination of the

CGU's recoverable amount would not cause its carrying amount to excesad its recoverable amount,

11.  INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURE

Group
2018 2017
£'000 £'000
Share of net assets of joint vantura:
DCP (Sentosa) Pre. Lid. 58,252 54,293

On 15 April 2008, RWSPL entered into a joint venture with Sentosa Leisure Management Pta, Ltd, ("SLM") to
build and operate a district cooling plant on Sentosa Island, Singapore, through the formation of DCP (Santosa)
Ple. Lid. ("DCPT), a private company incorporated in Singapore, RWSPL and SLM own 80% and 20% of the
share capital of DCP respectively. DOP is desmed o be a joint venture of the Group, as both RWSPL and SLM
have contractually agreed to the sharing of control in DCP,
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FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR EMDED 31 DECEMEBER 2018

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURE (CONTINUED)

The summarised financial information of DCP is as follows:

2018 2017
£'000 £'000
Non-current assets
Intangible asset - leasehold land use right 5,202 S0
Property, plant and equipment 50,361 o282
ther receivaties S0 -
55,613 57,492
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 6,343 2,419
Cash and cash equivalents 23,006 18,993
29,349 21,412
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables (3,781) (3,379)
Income tax liakilities (1,299) (298]
(5,080) (3,677)
Neon-current liability
Deferred tax liabilities (7,067 {7.3681)
Net assets 72,815 67,866
Revenue 19,870 18,424
(Expenses)fincome include:
— Depreciation and amortisation (3,008) (3,072)
— Interest incomea 161 &7
Profit before taxation 5,947 5,080
Taxation (998) [(B59)
Profit after taxation and total comprehensive income 4,949 4,231

DCF does not have any contingent liabilities.

Reconciliation of the summarised financial information presented, to the carrying amount of the Group's interest
in DCP, is as follows:

2018 2017
£'000 5000
MNet assots
Beginning of financial year 67,866 63,635
Profit after taxation and total comprehansive incomea 4,949 4,231
End of financial year 72,815 67,866
Carrying value of Group's interest in DCP 58,252 54,293
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12.  INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
Company

2018 2017

£'000 £'000
Unguoted shares - at cost 242,038 242 188
Less: Allowance for impairment [43) (43}

241,995 242 145
Amount due from subsidiary 2,074,000 1,388,000
Met investment in subsidiaries 2,215,005 1,631,145

The amount due from subsidiary is non-trade in nature, unsecured and interest-free. Repayments are not
expacted within the next 12 months. This amount is considerad part of net investments in subsidiaries.

The movemneants in allowance for impairment are as follows:

Company
2018 2017
£'000 £'000
Beginning of financial year 43 40
Allewance charged to profit or loss -
End of financial year 43 43

Details of the Company's significant subsidiary are as follows:

Country of Effective equity interest
Indirect subsidiary incorporation 2018 2017 Principal activities
RWSPL Singapore 100% 100% Cevelopment and operation of

an integrated Resort at Sentosa
The financial stabements of this subsidiary are audited by PricewaternouselCoopers LLP, Singapore.

The Group has complied with Rules 712 and 715 of the listing manual issuad by the SGX-5T in relation to the
appeintment of its auditors.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR EMDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

DEFERRED TAX

Defarrad tax assets and liabkilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assels
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred taxes relate 1o the same tax authority. The following amounts,
determined prior to offsetting, are shown in the statemeants of financial position:

Group
2018 2017
£'000 £'000
Deferred tax assets
To be recovered after ane year 171 52
Deferred tax liabilities
To be settlad after one yaar (288,728) (263,360)
Total deferred taxes (288,557) (283,308)
Details of deferred taxes prior to offsetting are as follows:
Beginning Credited/ Reclassified to End of
of financial {charged) to liabilities held financial
year profit or loss for sale year
Group £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
2018
Deferred tax assets
Provisions 23,262 (22,947) - 315
Deferred tax liabilities
Proparty, plant and equipment (304,962) 17,806 - (287 ,156)
Intangible assets {1,608) {108) - {1,716}
(306,570} 17,698 = (288,872)
Total deferred taxes {283,308) (5,249) - {288,557)
2017
Deferred tax assets
Provisions 10,027 13,219 16 23,262
Deferred tax liabilities
Froperty, plant and equipmant (308,601) 3,639 - (304 982)
Intangiblo assots (1,502 {10E) = {1,608)
(310,103) 3,633 - (306,570
Total deferred taxes (300,076) 16,752 16 [253,308)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

14.  FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Group

2018 2017

£'000 £'000
As at 31 December 2017 - -
Reclassification at 1 January 2018 (Notes 2.1 and 15) 217,299 -
Fair value gain 3,007 -
Disposals {1,475} -
Exchange differances 2,210 -
Az at 31 December 2018 22113 -
Quoted debt securities 183,137 -
Unquoted debt securities ™ 37,994 -

221,13 -

Thia investments in portfolio of quoted debt securities have no fixed maturity of coupon rate.

The invastmeants in unguoted debl sacurites réprasant unduoled investment in & forelgn corporation and an invastrment
furd.

15. AVAILAELE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

Group
2018 2017
$'000 $'000
Quoted debt sacurities _ 180 643
Unguoted debt securities - 36,606
- 217,299

On 1 January 2018, the Group has adopted SFRS() 2 and the entire amount of 217,299,000 has been
reclassified to financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Mote 14),
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR EMDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVAELES

Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Current
Trade receivables 333,658 282,156 - -
Amounts due from subsidiaries - - 45,031 29763
ther receivabies 32,148 13,180 24,451 8,052
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries 8 3B - -
Loan to a subsidiary - - 392,710 500,220
365,814 265,374 462,192 538,035
Less: Impairment (MNote 29(d)) (239,070) [156,253) (102,570) {78,989
126,744 109,121 350,622 459,046
Deposits 5,818 0,365 2 3
Prapayments 11,230 8,421 T2 101
143,792 126,907 359,696 458,150
MNon-current
Armounts due from subsidiaries - - 179,287 198,051
Loan to a subsidiary - - 262,500 270,000
= - 441,787 468,061
Less: Impairment (Note 29(d)) - - (52,225) {50,507)
- = 389,562 417 544
Prapayments 1,543 3,040 - -
1,543 3,040 389,562 417,544

The loans and amounts dus from subsidianes are mainly non-trade in nature, unsecured and intarest-free axcent
for $655,210,000 (2017 770,220,000} which are interest bearing, and S389,562 000 (2017: 3417 ,544,000)
which repayments is not expected within the naxt 12 months, The current loan and amounts dus from
subsidiarios are repayvable on demand.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

17. ASSET CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

As at 31 Decamber 2017, the asset classified az hald for sale represented an aircraft owned by a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company. The sale was completed in 2018,

18. INVENTORIES

Group
2018 2017
£'000 £'000
Retail stocks 4,482 4,201
Food, beverage and hotel supplies 18,633 19,123
Stores and technical spares 25,691 25 186
48,806 48,800

The cost of inventories recognised as an expense and included in “cost of sales™ amounted to 82,286,000
(2017: 279,105,000),

19. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND RESTRICTED CASH

Group Company
2018 2017 2048 2017
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Short term deposits with banks 3,752,652 3135417 3,076,117 2,503 635
Cagh and bank balancas 461,585 698 487 252,543 365,201
Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of
cash flows 4,214,237 3,833,004 3,328,660 2,865,836
Restricted cash 118,851 117,276 - -

Restricted cash represents deposit pledged as security for loan repaymeants and interest (Note 21).
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20.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Current
Trade payables 1,116 526 353 28
Accrued opearating liabilities 209,437 183,156 8,281 8,257
Accrued capital expenditure 11,159 53,054 - -
Retention monies and deposits 4,664 9,515 - -
Contract liabilities 161,957 157,630 - -
Other payables 60,918 51,930 168 241
Amounts due to:
- LUitimate holding corporation 32 g - -
- immediate holding corporation 34 107 26 a5
- Subsidianes - - 193,246 304,031
- Fellow subsidianes - 14 - 14
— Joint venture 5,447 1,638 - —
454,764 462,741 202,074 402 666
Non-current
Retention monfes and deposits 329 35 = -
Other payables 1,341 2,351 - —
1,670 2,386 - -

The amounts dus to ullimate holding corperation, immediate holding corperation, subsidiaries and fellow
subsidiaries are mainly non-trade in nature, unsecured, interest-free and are repayable on demand.

Retention monées refer to amounts withheld from contractors’ claim for work done in accordance with contractual
rights, which are progressively released upon the complation of the project.

Contract liabilities include loyalty program liabilities, customer advances and outstanding chips liabilities.

The following table summarises the lability activity related 1o contracts with customers:

Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
£'000 £'000 £'000 5'000
Balance as at 1 January 157,839 120,533 - -
Balance as at 31 December 161,957 157,638 - -
Increase 4,118 28,308 - -

Parformance cbligations that are contracted for but whose revenue has not been recognised in the financial
statements, are expected to be recognised as revenue in the next financial year.

GENTING SINGAPORE ANNUAL REPORT 2015 | 93

157/202



EDINETOOOO
00000000 O0000O00o0OO0000O0Ono(Ess484)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

21. BORROWINGS

Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Current
Bank borrowings (a) 203,017 201,490 - -
Finance leases (Mote 22) 3,358 1,647 - -
206,375 203,137 - -
Mon-current
Bank borrowings (a) 573,596 776,613 - -
Bonds () 245,799 235,262 245,799 236 252
Finance laazaes (Mota 22) 12,800 998 = =
832,195 1,012,863 245,799 235,252
Total borrowings 1,038,570 1,216,000 245,799 235,252

(a)  Bank borrowings

The repayment of the bank borrowings commenced on 23 September 2015 with half-yearly repayment
dates. All bank borrowings must be repaid by 23 March 2020, The carrying amounts of non-current
borrowings approximats their fair values at the reporting dats,

Az at 31 December 2017, banker's guarantess of $10,000,000 were obtained and held by Sentosa
Development Corporation (*SDC"), as part of the conditions in the Development Agreement entered into
with SDC. Pursuant to the terms of the Development Agreement, SOC relurned these banker’s guarantess
which were subseguently cancelled by the issuing banks in July 2018.

Bank borrowings of the Group are substantially secured over assets of the Singapore leisure and
hospitality business segment (Mote 31).

(b) Bonds

O 24 Catober 2017, the Company issued an unsacurad and unsubordinated Japaness Yen-denominated
bonds with a principal amount of Japanese Yen 20,000,000,000 (approximataely 240,240,000 in Japan,
acting through its Japan branch. The bonds have a coupon rate of 0.669% per annum and are due for
repayment five years from the issue date.
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FINAMCE LEASES

The Group leases certain machinery and motor vehicles from third parties under finance leases. The lease
agreements do net have renewal clauses but provide the Group with options to purchase the leased assets at
nominal value at the end of the lease tarm.

Group
2018 2017
£'000 £'000
Finance lease liabilites — minimum lease payments;
— Mot later than one year 4,900 2,033
- Betwean one and five years 14,415 1,116
- Later than five years 1,492 -
20,807 3,149
Less: Future finance charges on finance leasas (4,649) [504)
Prasant value of finance lease liabilities 16,158 2,845
The present value of finance lease liabilities is as follows (Note 21):
= Mot later than one year 3,358 1,647
- Betwean cne and five years 11,352 g998
= Later than five years 1,448 -
16,158 2.645

Finance leasze liabilities are sacured by the rights to the leasad assats (Note 9), where the lessors shall be antitled
to ownership of the assets in the event of default by the Group.

SHARE CAPITAL AND TREASURY SHARES

Share capital Treasury shares
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount

Group and Company ‘000 £'000 '000 S'000
2018

Beginning of financial year 12,094,027 5,527,705 [54,792) (44,432)
Treasury shares reissued - - 10,760 9,083
End of financial year 12,094,027 5,527,705 (44,032) (35,349)
2017

Beginning of financial year 12,094,027 5,527,705 (79,651) {56, 730)
Treasury shares reissusd - - 24,859 22,208
End of financial year 12,004,027 5,627,705 {54,722} {44 432

Al issued ordinary shares are ully paid. Thare is no par value for theses ordinary shares.
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23. SHARE CAPITAL AMD TREASURY SHARES (CONTINUED)
(a) Treasury shares

At the Annual General Meeting ("AGM”) of the Company held on 17 April 2018, the shareholders of the
Company approved the renswal of the authority for the Company to purchase its shares of up to 10%
af the issued and paid-up share capital of the Comparny at any paint in tims.

Curing the financial year, the Company did not acquire any of its shares through purchases on the
SGEX-5T.

(b}  Renounceable underwritten rights issue (“2009 Rights Issua™)

The Company had on 9 September 2008 announced that the Company would be undertaking a
renounceable rights issue of up to 2,043,716,084 new ordinary shares in the capital of the Company
at an issue price of 30.80 for each rights share on the basis of one right share for every 5 existing
ordinary shares in the Company held by the shareholders on 23 September 20049, Based on the issued
share capital of the Company on 23 September 2009, 1,931,564,264 rights shares weare available
under the 2009 Rights lssue, The 2009 Rights Issue was oversubscribed and raised gross proceeds
of approximately 31.55 billion for the Company. The 2009 Rights Issue was completed on 21 October
2009 with the listing and gquotation of 1,931,584 ,264 rights shares on the Main Beard of the SGX-5T.

As at 31 Decamber 2018, the proceeds from the 2009 Rights Issus have been utiised in accordance
with its stated use and the breakdown is as follows:

__Sooo
Cost of issuance 37832
Repayment of term loan facilities taken for the acquisition of Genting UK PLC 30,675
MNet repayment of revolving cradit facility taken for the working capital of
the Group's UK operations 70,000
Subscription of shares in subsidiaries 172,722
Invastment in an associate 412,271
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 169,648
Payment of operating expenses of the Company and its subsidiaries 267,442
1,160,580
Balance unutllised 384,661
Total proceeds 1,545,251
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OTHER RESERVES

Group Company
2018 207 2018 2017
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Performance share ressrve (a) 8,060 11,043 8,060 11,043
Fair valus reserve (b) - 14,257 - -
Exchange translation reserve (c) 7,182 7256 (83) 22
15,242 32 556 7977 11,065

{a) Performance share reserve

Performance share resernse comprise cumulative fair value of services received from emplovees measurad
at the date of grant for unvested equity-settied performance shares under the Genting Singapore
Performance Share Scheme ("F5587).

On 8 August 2007, the sharsholders of the Company approved the adoption of the PSS for the Initial
Period of 10 years. The objective of the P35 is to attract and retain the Group's executives, executive
directors and non-executive directors, who are in the position to drive the growth of the Company.
Tha PSS gives the Company flexibility in relation to the Group™s remuneration package for the Group's
axecutives, executive directors and non-executive directors and allows the Group o manage its fixed
overheads. On 21 Aprl 2016, the shareholders of the Company approved amendments to the rules of
the PSS and the Extended Period.

Under the PSS, the Company may grant to participants awards which represent the right of such
participants to receive fully paid shares free of charge, upon such participants satisfying the criteria set
out in the P35S and such conditions as may be imposed. The number of shares which are the subject
of each award shall be determined at the absolute discretion of the Remuneration Committes, which
shall take into account various criteria including thosa set out in the rules of the PSS, The Company will
deliver shares to be recaived under an award by issuing new sharas and/or transferring treasury sharas
to the participants.

The total number of shares which may be awarded pursuant to awards granted undar the P35 during
the Initial Period shall not excesd 208,853,693 shares, and when added to the number of shares issued
andsor issuable under such other share-based incentive schameas of the Company, shall not excead 5%
of the total number of iszued shares of the Company {excluding treasury shares) from tima to time. The
total number of shares which may be awarded pursuant to awards granted under the PSS during the
Extended Period shall not exceed 420,433,143 shares, and when added to the number of shares issued
andsor issuable under such other share-based incentive schemes of the Company, shall not excesad
5% of the total number of issued shares of the Company {excluding treasury sharas) from time to time.

Tha vesting of performance shares granted under P35 is subject to the achieving of pre-agread service
andsor performance conditions over the performance peariod.

For performance share grants with pre-agreed zervice conditions, the fair value was detarmined basad
on the Company's closing market price at the date of grant. The weighted average fair value per share
granted in 2018 was $1.128 (2017: 31.004).
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24.

OTHER RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(a)

Performance share reserve (Continued)

Movements in the number of performance shares outstanding are as follows:

Group and Company

2017

31,730,000
& ATT,000
(1,118,000

(24,859,000

2018
Beginning of financial year 10,920,000
Granted 7,595,000
Lapsed (360,000)
lssued {10,780,000)
End of financial year 7,405,000

10,830,000

A summary of the cumulative parformance shares granted to the Directors of the Group since the

commencament of the PSS are set oul below:

Directors

Tan Sri Lim Kok Thay
Mr Tan Hee Teck

Mr Lim Kok Hoong

Mr Tiong ik Min

Mr Koh Seow Chuan
Mr Jonathan Asherson
Mr Tan Wah Yeow

Mumber of PSS granted

2018 2017
8,250,000 7,500,000
35,380,000 54,630,000
- 1,125,000
1,250,000 1,125,000
1,130,000 1,008,000
125,000 -
125,000 -
46,260,000 45385000

Other than Tan S Lim Kok Thay, Mr Tan Hee Teck and Ms Tan Hsieh Lee who have been granted
750,000, 750,000 and 1,150,000 PSS shares respectively during the financial year, no other employes
has received 5% or more of the tolal number of awards granted during the financial year,

{b) Fair value reserve

Fair value reserve includes the cumulative change in the fair value of available-for-sale investments until
the imeestiments are derscognised or impaired, The entire amount was reclassified 1o retained Sarnings
on 1 January 2018 upeon the adoption of the Mew SFRS{ls (Note 2.1),

() Exchange translation reserve

Exchange translation reserve comprise foreign exchange differences arising from the translation of the
financial statements of foreign operations where functional currencies are different from the presentation

currancy of the Group.
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25.

DIVIDEMDS

Group and Company

2018 2017
£'000 £'000
Final dividends paid in respect of the previous financial year of 2.0 cents
(2017: 1.5 cents) per ordinary share 240,900 180,372
Interim dividends paid in respect of current financial year of 1.5 cents
[2017: 1.5 cents) per ordinary share 180,675 180,379

On 3 August 2018, the Directors approvad the interim dividend of 1.5 cents per ordinary share in respact of
the financial year endad 31 December 2018, Tha dividend has been accounted for in sharshaolders’ aqguity as
an appropriation of retained sarnings in the financial year ended 31 Dacember 2018,

The Directors proposad the payment of a final dividend of 2.0 cents per ardinary share, in respect of the financial
year ended 31 December 2018, subject 1o the approval of shareholders at the next AGM of the Company.
These financial statements do not reflect this dividend, which will be accounted for in sharsholders’ equity as
an appropriation of retained aarnings in the financial vear ending 31 December 2019, after it has been approved
by shareholders at the AGM,

PROVISION FOR RETIREMEMNT GRATUITIES

Group Company

2018 2017 2018 2017

£'000 £'000 5'000 5'000
Beginning of financial year 476 73k 45 258
Charged/cradited) to profit or loss 58 20 12 (39
Payment mads (39 278 - (174)
Exchange differences {5 = - -
End of financial year 490 476 57 45

Retirement gratuities are payable to certain employess upon their retirerment, Thea gratuities provided are factored
for discount rates, based on interast rates available in the market for bonds with AAA ratings. and attrition rates
based on age bands.

PERPETUAL CAPITAL SECURITIES

On 12 March 2012, the Company issued 51,800,000,000 5125% perpetual capital securities (“Institutional
Securities”) at an issue price of 100 per cent,

Cn 18 April 2012, the Company issued E500.000,000 5.125% perpetual capital securities ("Retail Securities”)
at an issue price of 100 per cent.

Holders of thess Institutional and Retall Sscurities wers confarred a right to receive distribution on a semi-annual
basis from thair issus date at the rate of 5.125% per annum, subject to a step-up rate from 12 Seplember 2022
and 18 October 2022 respectively. The Company had a right to defer this distribution under certain conditions.
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27. PERPETUAL CAPITAL SEGURITIES ([CONTINUED)

The Institutional and Retail Sacurities had no fixed maturity and were redeemable in whola, but not in part, at the
Company's option on or after 12 September 2017 for the Institutional Securities and 18 October 2017 for the
Retail Securities at their principal amounts together with any accrued, unpaid or deferred distributicns. While any
distributions were unpaid or deferred, the Company would not declare, pay dividends or make similar periodic
payments in respect of, or repurchase, redeam or otherwise acquire any securities of lower or equal rank,

Thesae perpetual capital securities were issuad for the Company’s general corporate purposes as well as to
finance capital expanditure and the expansion of its business.

In 2017, the Board of Direclors approved 1o distribute the payments for the Institulional and Retail Securities,
The Institutional Securities distribution amounting to 545,746,000 and 546,505,000 were paid on 13 March

2017 and 12 September 2017 respectively. The Retail Securities distribution amounting to 512,777,000 and
512,847,000 were paid on 18 April 2007 and 19 Cctober 2017 respectively.

The Company fully redesmed the Institutional and Retail Securnities on 12 September 2017 and 12 Colober
2017 respactively,

28. COMMITMENTS

{a) Capital commitments

Group
2048 2017
£'000 £'000
Authorised capital expenditure not provided for in
the financial statements:
Contracted - propearty, plant and equipment 61,682 45 388

{b)  Operating lease commitments - Where the Group and Company is a lessee

The Company leases offices and the Group leases offices and equipment under non-cancellable operating
lease agraements. These leases have varying terms and renewal rights.

The future minimum lease payables under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Mot later than one year 2,550 1,016 330 &5
Betweaan one and five yaars 2,195 461 55 =
4,745 1477 385 55
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28, COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)
(e} Operating lease commitments - Where the Group is a lessor
The Group leases out retail spaces and offices under non-cancellable opearating leases. These leases have
varying terms and renewal rights. Generally, the lessssas are required to pay contingant rents computad

bazed on their turnover achieved during the lease pericd.

The future minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable cperating leases are as follows:

Group
2018 2017
£'000 £'000
Mot later than one yvear 16,686 13,826
Batwean one and five years 16,686 10,278
Later than five vears 126 646
33,498 24,750

29. FINANCIAL RISK MAMAGEMENT

The Group's overall financial risk managament objective is 1o optimise value creation for shareholdars, The Group
seaks 1o minimise the potential adverse impact arising from fluctuations in foreign exchange and interast rates
and the unpredictability of the financial markets on the Group's financial parformance.

The Group operates within cleary defined guidelines that are approved by the Board of Diractors. Financial
risk managemeant is carried out through sk reviews conducted at all significant oparational units. This process
is further enhancad by effective internal controls, a group-wide insurance programme and adherance to the
financial risk managemeant paolicias.

The main areas of financial risk faced by the Group are as follows:
(a) Foreign currency exchange risk

The Group has certain investments in foreign operations, whose net asssts are exposed fo forgign
currency transiation risk. Currency exposure arising from the net assets of the Group's foreign operations
is managed primarily through borrowings denominated in the relevant foreign currencies,

The Group is exposad to forsign currency axchange risk when the Company and its subsidiaries anter
into transactions that are not denominatad in their functional currencies. To manage these axposures,
the Group lakes advantage of any natural offsets of the Group's revenue and expensss denominated in
foretgn currencies and may from time to time anter into foreign exchange forward contracts for a portion
of the remaining exposure relating to thase forecast transactions when deemed appropriate.

The Group's and Company's principal net forgign currency axposures mainly ralate 1o the United States
Dallar (*USD).
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29.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
(a) Foreign currency exchange risk (Continued)

The Group's and Company’s CUrrency exposuras are as follows:

Group Gompany

2018 2007 2018 2017
uso £'000 5'000 £'000 5000
Financial assets
Financial assets at fair valus through

profit or lozs 105,941 - - -

Available-for-sale financial assets - 103,852 - -
Trade and other receivables 2,320 4773 752 15,598
Cash and cash eguivalents 126,094 273,577 125,679 870,777

234,355 988,202 126,431 886,373
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables (5,203) (2,154) (550) 522)
Finance leases {16,151) (2.611) - -

(21,354) (4,7 65) (550) 1522
Met currency exposures 213,001 983,437 125,881 885,851

If the UISD changes against the Singapore Doflar ("SG0T) by 1% (2017: 1%) with all other variables being
held constant, the effects on profit before taxation will be as follows:

Increase|decrease)

Group Company
2018 20$7 2018 2017
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
LSk against 560
- Strengthanad 2,130 9,834 1,259 §,859
- Weakenad {2,130} a,854) {1,259 {B5,859)

(b) Price risk

The Group is exposad to securities price risk from its quoted securities classified as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss (2017: available-for-sale financial assets). To manage its price risk
arising from thase investmeants, the Group diversifies its portfolio. Diversification of the portfolio is doneg
in accordance with the limits set by the Group,
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29.  FINANCIAL RISK MAMAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

{d)

Price risk (Continued)

If prices for quoted securities change by 1% (2017: 1%) respactively with all other variables being hald
constant, the effects on profit before taxation and other comprahansive income will be as follows:

Increase/(decrease)
Group

2018 2017

$'000 $'000
Profit before taxation
Increased by 1% 1,831 -
Decreased by 1% (1,831) -
Other comprehensive income
Increased by 1% - 1,806
Decreased by 1% - {1,806)

The Company is not exposad to price risk,
Intarast rate risk

Interest rate risk arises mainly from the Group's and the Company's short-term daposits and borrowings,
Short-term deposits are placed at prevailing intarest rates and are substantially independent of interest
rates risk. The Group's bank borrowings bears floating interest rata,

If the annual interast rates levied on bank borrowings had increased/decreased by 100 basis point
(2017: 100 basis point) with 2l other variables including tax rate being held constant, the profit bafore
taxation will be lowearhigher by 58,719,000 (2017: $10,720,000) as a result of higherlowsr interast
expense on these bank borrowings.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the potential financial loss resulting from the failure of counterparties of the Group, to setlie
their financial and contractual obligation as and when they fall due.

The Group's main class of financial assets that are subject to credit risk are trade and other receivables,
financial assats at fair value through profit or loss, cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash. The
Group's financial assels except trade and other recsivables are subjected to immaterial credit loss,

As the Group does not hold any collateral, the maximum exposurs to credit risk for each class of financial
instrumeants is the carrying amount of that class of financial instruments presented on the statemeants of
financial position.
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

() Credit risk [Continued)
Trade receivables

In managing credit risk exposure from trade receivables, majority of which are related to casing debtors,
the Group has established a credit committee and processas o evaluate the creditworthiness of its
counterparties, The counterparty’s payment profile and credit exposure are continuousty monitored by the
credit committee, togethar with the operational policies and guidelines. Cradil exposure to an individual
counterparty is restricted by the credit limits set by the credit committee based on the ocngoing credit
evaluation. The top 10 trade debtors of the Group represented 19% {2017 24%) of trade recaivables.

In measwring the lifetime expected cradit losses, the Group uses the provision matrix method where trade
receivablas are grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and days past dus. The expeched
loss rates are based on the payment profiles and the corresponding historical cradit losses exparnanced.
The Group has considersd forward-looking information and determined that it does not significantly affect
the historical credit lossas.

The Group congiders a trade receivable as credit impaired when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated cash flow have occurred. These instances include adverse changes
in the financial capability of the deblor and default or significant delay in payments.

Trade receivables are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, with the case-by-
case assassment performed based on indicators such as insolvency or demise, Where receivables are
written off, the Group continues to engage in enforcament activity to attempt to recover the receivables
cue, Where recoveries are mads, thase are recognised in profit or loss, No trade receivatles weare wriltan
off during the year.

The Group's cradit risk exposure in relation to trade receivables as at 31 December 2018 and 1 January
2018 are as follows:

Past due Past due Past due
less than Jto more than
Mot past due 3 months & months & months Total

Group £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
31 December 2018
Trade raceivables 84,768 91,634 50,325 106,931 333,858
Allowance for impairmernt (10,557) {71,318) {50,264) {106,931) {239,070}
Total 74,211 20,316 61 - 84 588
1 January 2018
Trade receivables 21,732 73,219 20,96 66,289 252 158
Allowance for impairment® 7. 268) {65.019) (20,632) [B5.797) (159.416)
Total B3, TE4 8,200 284 492 a2 740

The affact of adoption of the New SEASES of $3,163.000 has been includad in the amount as a1 1 January 2018
{Mote 2.1)

The Company has no exposure to trade receivables past dus not impaired.
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29.  FINANCIAL RISK MAMAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

{d)

Credit risk (Continued)

Other receivables

The Group and the Company use the below internal credit risk categories for other receivables which
are subject to expected credit losses approach parmitted cunder SFRS() 9. The 4 categories reflact the
respective credit risk and how the loss provision is determined for each of those categones as follows:

Basis for recognition of

Category Description expected credit losses

« Performing Low risk of default and a strong

capacity to meet contractual cash flows.

12-month expected credit losses

+  Lnder-parionming Significant increase in credit risk since

initiad recognition.

Litetime expected credit [ossas

+  Mon-performing Evidence indicating that the asset is

impaired.

Lifetime expected credit lossas

*  Write-off Mo reasonable expectation of recovery, Amount is written off

The Company has no financial assats that are subject to more than immaterial credit losses where the
expected credit loss model has been applied except for amounts due from subsidiaries (Note 16).

The moverments in allowance for impairment on trade and other receivables are as follows:

oOoOooodn

Group Company

§'000 £'000
As at 31 December 2017 156,253 129,496
Effect of adoption of New SFRS()s (Note 2.1) 3,163 =
As at 1 January 2018 159,416 129,496
Allowance charged to profit or loss 79,671 24,209
Allowance utilised {14} B
Exchange differences (3) 1,090
As at 31 December 2018 239,070 154,795

Previous accounting policy for impairment on trade and other receivables

The Group established an allowance account for impalrment that represants its estimate of losses in
respect of trade and other receivables, The main companant of this allowance was estimated losses that
relate to specific counterparties, Subsequently whan the Group was satisfied that no recovery of such
losses was possible, the trade receivables were considered irecoverable and the amount charged to the
allowance account was then written off against the carrying amount of the impaired trade receivables.
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
[dy  Credit risk (Continued)
Previous accounting policy for impairment on trade and other receivables (Continued)
il Financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired

Cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash and available-for-sale financial assets are neither past
due nor impaired as they are placad with craditworthy financial institutions and organisations. Trade
and other receivables that ara neither past due nor impaired are substantiaily from companies
and individuals with a good collection track record with the Group and individuals with good
creditworthiness.

(i Financial assets thal are past due and/or impaired

The Group had no other class of financial assets that is past due andfor impaired except for trade
and other recsivablas,

The age analysis of rade receivables past dug but not impaired is as follows:

2017
Group £'000
FPast due lass than 3 months 12,233
Fast due 3 to € months 283
Past due 6 to 12 months a2
Past due over 12 months 2894
13,022
The Company had no exposure o trade receivablas past due but not impaired,
The movemants in allowance for impairment are as follows:
Group Gompany
2017 2017
£'000 £'000
Beginning of financial year 184,033 136,846
Allowance chargead to profit or loss 103,593 2,561
Allowance utilised {131,348} (487]
Exchange diffsrences {25) {2,424)
End of financial year 156,253 120,496

In 2017, the Group's gross trade and other receivables individually determined to be past due
and for which impairment had been provided, amounted to S156,253,000. In assessing these
individual debts for impairment, the Group had considered the factors such as adverse changes
in financial capability of the debtor, and default or significant delay in payments.

In 2017, the Company’s gross amounts due from subsidiaries determined lo be impaired was
5129,486,000.
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29, FINANCIAL RISK MAMAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
(=) Liquidity risk

The Group practizes prudent liguidity risk managameant to minimise the mizsmatch of financial assats
and liabilities. The Group's cash flow is reviewed regularly to ensure that the Group is able to settle its
commitments when they fail dus.

Cash flow forecasting is performed in the operating entities of the Group and aggregated for Group
purposes. The Group monitors roling forecasts of its liquidity requirements to ensure it has sufficient cash
to meet operational needs whils maintaining sufficient headroom on its undrawn borrowing facilities at all
times so that the Group does not breach borrowing limits or covenants on any of its borrowing facilities,
Such forecasting takes into consideration the Group's debt financing plans, covenant compliance and
compliance with internal ratio targets.

The table below analyses the financial liabilities of the Group and the Company into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining period as at reporfing date to the contractual maturity date. The
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows,

Less than Between Batweaan Over
1 year 1and 2 years 2 and 5 years 5 years
5'000 5'000 £'000 S000
Group
2018
Trade and other payablas® 292,807 1,377 293 -
Bank borrowings 231,475 580,139 - -
Bonds 1,654 1,654 250,187 -
Fimnance leases 4,900 3,669 10,746 1,492
530,836 586,839 261,226 1,492
2017
Trade and other payables” 304,902 1,204 482 -
Bank borrowings 231,960 230,253 579,576 -
Bonds 1,586 1,586 241,568 -
Finance leases 2,033 1,081 85 -
540,481 234,774 21,711 =
Company
2018
Trade and other payables” 202,074 - - -
Bonds 1,654 1,654 250,187 -
203,728 1,654 250,187 -
2017
Trade and other payables® 402 666 - - -
Bonds 1,586 1,586 241,568 -
404,252 1.586 241,568 -

Excluedes contract llabilities
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29.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
(f) Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concam in order to provide returns for shareholdars and benefits for other stakeholders.

In order to oplimise the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
sharaholders, retumn capital to shareholders, issue new shares, buy back issued shares, take cn new
debt or sell assetls o reduce debt.

Consistent with the industry, the Group monitors capital utilisation based on the basis of the gearing ratio,
This ratio is calculated as total debt divided by tolal capital. Total debt is calculated as total borrowings.

Total capital is calculated as equity attributable to ordinary sharehoiders of the Company plus total dabt.

The gearing ratics are as follows:

Group
2018 2017
£'000 £'000
Total debt 1,038,570 1,216,000
Total equity attributable fo ordinary shareholders of the Company 7,781,345 7.441 588
Total capital 8,819,915 8,657,558
Gearing ratio 12% 14%

There were No changes in the Group's approach (o capital management during the current inancial year,

The Group was in compliance with externally imposed capital requirements for the financial years ended
31 December 20158 and 2017.

{g) Fair value estimation

The following table presents the Group's assets and liabilities measured at fair value and classified by
lenvied of the following fair value measurement hiararchy:

i Cuoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Leval 1);

(i) Inputs other than guoted prices includad within Level 1 that are obsarvable for the asset or lability,
aither directly (.8, as prices) or indiractly {i.e. darived from prices) (Level 2); and

iy Inputs for the asset or liability that are not bazed on obsarvable market data (that is, unobservable
imputs) (Level 3).
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29,  FIMANCIAL RISK MAMAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
(g) Fair value estimation (Continued)

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Group £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
2018
Assets
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (Note 14) 183,137 - 37,994 221,131

2017
Assets
Available-for-sale financial assets
{Note 15) 180,643 - 36,656 217,299

There were no fransfers betwesn Level 1 and Level 2.

The fair value of financial instrements traded in active markets is based on closing quoted market prices
on the last market day at the reporting date. A market is regarded as active it guoted pricas are readily
and regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, indusiry group, pricing service, or regulatory
agency, and those prices represant actual and regularly ocowrring market transactions on an arm's length
basis. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the Group is the current bid price. These
instruments are includad in Level 1,

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-tha-
counter derivatives) is determined by using valuation technigues. These valuation technigues maximise
the use of observable market data where it is available and rely as little as possible on entity specific
astimates. If all significant inputs regquired to fair value an instrument are obsarvable, the instrument is
included in Level 2.

The Group uses a variety of methods and makes assumptions that are based on market conditions
axisting at each reporting date. Qucted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments are used
to estimate fair value for long term debt for disclosure purposes. Other technigues, such as discounted
cash flow analysis, are used lo determine fair value for the remaining financial instruments.

if one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is
included in Level 3. Changing one or more of the unobservable inputs in the valuation technigue usad for
Level 3 instruments will not significantly impact the fair value of these instruments. The assessment of the
fair value of unguoted debt securities is performed on a quarterly basis based on the latest available data
such as underlying net asset value of the investes entity to approximate the tair value as at reporting date.
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
(a) Fair value estimation (Continued)

The following table presents the changes in Level 3 instruments:

Group

2017
$'000

43,129
{585)

{5.888)

2018

£'000
Baeginning of financial year 36,656
Cisposals {1,475)
Fair value gain recognized in profit or loss 1,991
Fair value logs recognised in other comprehensive incomea -
Exchange differences 822
End of financial year 37,994

36,656

The fair value of current and non-currant financial assets and liablities approximate thelr carrying amaounts.

(k) Financial instruments by category

The aggregate carrying amounts of financial instrumants are categonised as follows:

Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Financial assats at amortised cost 4,465,650 - 4,077,846 -
Loans and receivables - 4,060 BEE - 3,745 420
Financial assats at fair value through
profit or loss 224,13 - - -
Available-for-sale financial assels - 217,299 - -
Financial liabilities at amortised cost 1,333,047 1,523,288 447,873 637 218

30. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

The Company's immediate holding corporation is Genting Overseas Holdings Limited, a company incarporated
in the isle of Man, Tha ultimate holding corporation is Genting Berhad, a company incorporated in Malaysia and

whose shares are listad on the Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.
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RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

In addition to the information disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the following
significant transactions ook place between the Group and related parties:

Group
2018 2017
£'000 £'000
iy Sales of goods and/or services to;
- Subsidiaries of a substantial sharshalder 1,392 2,176
- A Joint ventura 1,107 1171
2,499 3,347
(i} Purchases of goods and/or services from:
- Subsidiaries of a substantial sharsholder (2,687) (3,150)
= A joint venture (19,870) (18,424
(22,557) {21,574)

Key management remuneration (including directors' remuneration):

Key management remuneration includes fees, salaries, bonus, commission and other emoluments computed
basad on the costs incwrred by the Group, and wheara the Group did not incur any costs, the value of the banefit.

The remuneration of directors and the key management parsonnel are analysed as follows:

Group
2018 2017
£'000 £'000
Non-executive directors
- Fees and mesting allowances 1,425 1,282
- Share-based payment S60 T
1,985 1,697
Executive directors
- Fees and meeting allowances 75 B4
= Salaries, bonus and other emcluments 15,714 14,692
- Defined contribution plan 29 203
- Share-based payment 2,995 6,690
18,813 21,669
Total 20,798 23,266
Key management personnel (excluding directors' remuneration)
— Salaries, bonus and other smoluments 6,100 6,83
- Defined contribution plan 192 178
- Share-based payment 1,652 1,258
Tatal 7,844 8,276
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31. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management has determined the operating sagments based on the reports that are used by the chief cperating
decision-maker o make strategic decisions.

The chief operating dacision-maker considers the business from both business and geographic parspactives.
Business segment

The Singapore lsisure and hospitality ssgment derives revenue from the development and opseration of the
integrated resort.

Under the Development Agreement signed between the SDC and the Group, the Group is required to construct,
develop and cperate a resort with a comprehensive range of integrated and synergised ameanities for recreation,
entertainment and lifestyle uses. This includes key atfractions such as hotels, event facilities, retail, dining,
entertainment shows, themed attractions and casing, which must be at all times operated and managed together.
Each key attraction cannot be closed without prior written approval from SDC.

The investment business derives revenue from investing in assets to generate future income and cash flows,

Safes betwesn segments are carried out at arm's length. The revenue from external parties reported to the
chief operating decision-maker is measured in a manner consistent with that in the statement of comprehensive
income.

The chief operating decision-maker assasses the performance of the operating segments based on a measura
of adjusted earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation ("Adjusted EBITDA"). This measurement
basis excludes the eltects of gainiloss on disposal of assets and liabilites classified as held-for-sale, share-based
payment, net exchange gain/oss relating to investiments and other income/expensas which include imparment/
write-off/gainioss on disposal of property, plant and equipment, pre-opening/development expenses and other
non-recurring adjustmants,

Segment assets consist primarily of property, plant and sguipment, intangible assets, inventories, trade and
athear receivabies, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, available-for-sale financial assets, restricted
cash and cash and cash equivalents.

Segment liabilities comprise all liabilities other than current and defarred tax liabilities, borrowings and finance
leasos.

112 | GENTING SINGAPORE ANMUAL REPORT 2018

176/202



EDINETOOOO
00000000 O0000O00o0OO0000O0Ono(Ess484)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR EMDED 31 DECEMEBER 2018

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Laisure and Hospitality

Singapore Others” Investments Total

Group
2018 £'000 3000 $'000 £'000
Gaming 1,678,987 - - 1,678,987
Mon-gaming 834,235 - - 834,235
Other revanua 23,453 T&T 5,967 30,187
Inter-seqment revenue - - (4,174) (4,174)
External revenue 2,536,675 767 1,793 2,539,235
Adjusted EBITDA 1,260,702 6,852) [24,175) 1,229,675
Share of resulls of joint venture 3,959 - - 3,859
Depreciation of property, plant and egquipment [290,426) - (1,115) {291,541}
Amaortisation of intangible assets (23,976) - - (23,876)
Assets
Segment assets 5875922 21,067 3,811,730 9,708,719
Interests in joint venture 58,252 - - 58,252
Defarred tax assets 171
Consolidated total assets 9,767,142
Segment asssts includs;
Additions to:

- Property, plant and equipment 89,220 - 599 89,819

- Intangible assets 247T - - 2,477
Liabilities
Segment hakilities 444,818 2,195 9,911 456,924
Borrowings 1,038,570
Income tax liabilities 201,573
Deferred tax liabilities 288,728
Consolidated total liabilities 1,985,795

Other leisurg and hospitalily segment mainly represents olher support services,
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31. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Leisure and Hospitality

Singapore Others” Investments Total

Group
2017 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Gaming’ 1,588,903 = = 1.588.903
Mon-gaming’ Ti7F 873 - - TrfTB73
Cther revenus 23,669 469 6,167 30,305
Inter-segment revenus - - 14,522 {4.522)
External revenue 2,390,445 489 1,845 2,392 559
Adjusted EBITDA 1,172,064 [5,983) {14,907) 1,151,174
Share of results of joint venture 3,385 - - 3,385
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (258,038) - (1,153) (259,181)
Amortization of intangible assats (23.721) = - (23.721)
Assets
Sagment assets 6,194,502 18,614 3,339,365 9,552,481
Interests in joint venture 54,293 - - 54,293
Defarred tax assets 52
Consolidated total assels 3,606,826
Segment assels includs;
Additions to:

= Property, plant and equipmeant 120,464 - 201 120,665

= intangible assats 2,214 = - 2214
Liabilities
Segment liabilities 454,017 1,981 9,805 465,603
Barrowings 1,216,000
Income tax labilities 200,303
Deferred tax liabilities 283,360
Censolidated total liabilities 2,165,266

Othar leisuse and hospitality sagment mainly represents other support sanvices,

e Revarue far the prior periods ware restated due to adoption of the New SFRS(lls with tolal révenue remaining unchanged.
Refer 1o Note 2,1 for details,
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31.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

A reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDA to profit before taxation is provided as follows:

Group

2018 207

5'000 $'000
Adjusted EBITDA for reporiable segments 1,229,675 1,151,174
Share-based payment (9, 206) {10,7865)
Mat exchange loss relating to investments (2,512) {109,337)
Depreciation and amortisation (315,517 (282.912)
Interest income 72,342 71,084
Finance costs [35,813) (35,648)
Share of results of joint venture 3,859 3,385
Gain on disposal of assets and liabilities classified as held for sale 115 98,285
Zther income|expenses)” 282 {23,250)
Frofit before taxation 943,238 860026

Oiher expenses include impaiment/write-cif/gaindloss) on disposal of property, plant and equipment, pre-opening/
developmeant axpenses and other non-recurning adjustmeants,

Geographical information

The Group operates predominantly in Asia. The main business of the Group is in leisure and hospitality operations
in Singapore wihere the development and operation of an integrated resort contributes most of its revenua, The
operations in other geographical areas in the Asia Pacific (exclueding Singapore) are sales and markeating senvicas
relating to the Group's leisure and hospitality related businesses and othar investments.

Revanue is classified based on the location in which revenue is derivad. Sales batween segments are aliminated.
Non-current assets exclude deferrad fax assets, financial assets at fair value through profit or ioss and available-
for-gale financial assels,

Group
2018 2017
5'000 3'000
Revenus
Singapore 2,538,799 2,382,182
Asia Pacific {excluding Singapore) 436 377

2,539,235 2,302,550

Non-current assets
Singapore 5,016,141 5,243,700
Asla Pacific (sxcluding Singapore) 4,013 7.302

5,020,154  5.251,002

There is no revenue derved from transactions with a single external customer that amounted to 10% or more
of the Group's revenus,
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32, AUTHORISATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Tha financial statements were authorizad for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors
on 21 February 2019,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF GENTING SINGAPORE LIMITED

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Our Opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Genting Singapore Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) and the statement of financial position and statement of changes in equity of the Company are
properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, Chapter 50 (the “Act”) and Singapore Financial
Reporting Standards (International) (“SFRS(I)s”) so as to give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group and the financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2018, and of the consolidated financial performance,
consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group and changes in equity of the Company for the
financial year ended on that date.

What we have audited

The financial statements of the Company and the Group comprise:
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income of the Group for the financial year ended 31 December 2018;
the consolidated statement of financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2018;
the statement of financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2018;
the consolidated statement of changes in equity of the Group for the financial year then ended;
the statement of changes in equity of the Company for the financial year then ended;
the consolidated statement of cash flows of the Group for the financial year then ended; and

the notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing (“SSAs”). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Independence
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Accounting and Corporate Regulatory Authority (“ACRA”) Code of
Professional Conduct and Ethics for Public Accountants and Accounting Entities (‘ACRA Code”) together with the ethical

requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Singapore, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ACRA Code.
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As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of material misstatement in the
accompanying financial statements. In particular, we considered where management made subjective judgments; for
example, in respect of significant accounting estimates that involved making assumptions and considering future events that
are inherently uncertain. As in all of our audits, we also addressed the risk of management override of internal controls,
including among other matters consideration of whether there was evidence of bias that represented a risk of material

misstatement due to fraud.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2018. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion

on these matters.

Key Audit Matter

1. Estimation of tax provisions

See Note 3(a) of the financial statements for
related accounting policies, estimates and
judgements for further information.

This was a key audit matter because of the
significant judgement involved in evaluating
the capital allowances claim for items within
the leasehold improvements and fixtures and
fittings asset categories which are not
common and have few precedents, and the
deductibility of certain expenses.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had
income tax provisions of $202 million and
deferred tax liabilities of $289 million.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

We updated our understanding of management’s processes and
controls for identifying and calculating tax-related provisions.

We read all relevant correspondences with the tax authorities, in
particular those relating to the availability of capital allowances for
certain assets and the deductibility of certain expenses. We
considered relevant historical assessments issued by tax authorities
and obtained an understanding of the latest position in all open tax
matters relating to material items including the conclusions reached
during the year. Where management engaged external experts, we
assessed the experts' independence and qualifications and also
considered their professional advice.

With the advice of our tax specialists, we considered relevant
information gathered through the above procedures in assessing the
reasonableness of management’s revisions to its estimates and
management’'s assumptions regarding the Group’s tax positions.

Based on procedures performed, we found management’s
assessment on the availability of capital allowances for certain
assets and deductibility of certain expenses in determining the
Group’s tax provision to be consistent with our understanding.
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Key Audit Matter

2. Impairment of trade receivables

See Note 3(b) of the financial statements for
the related accounting policies, estimates
and judgements and Note 29(d) for the credit
risk exposure.

The impairment of trade receivables, majority
of which were related to casino debtors, was
a key audit matter as significant judgement
was involved in determining the expected
credit losses. These significant judgements
included: (i) grouping of trade receivables
based on shared credit risk characteristics
and days past due; (ii) expected loss rates
based on historical credit loss experience;
and (iii) identification of indicators of when
trade receivables are credit impaired.

As at 31 December 2018, allowance for
impairment amounted to $239 million and an
impairment charge of $58 million was
recognised for the year ended 31 December
2018.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

We updated our understanding of the processes for credit
assessment and approval, and impairment assessment of trade
receivables. We tested the operating effectiveness of relevant

controls including the following:

checked on a sampling basis that credit assessment has been
appropriately completed in accordance with the Group’s standard
operating procedures for credit granting;

checked on a sampling basis the authorisation of credit based on
the Group’s approval matrix for credit transactions; and

read the minutes of all the meetings of the credit committee
(which is responsible for the monitoring of trade receivables and
approval of impairment provisions) and checked that monitoring
and credit risk assessment is performed.

We reviewed the credit evaluation and monitoring files relating to
the
chairperson of the credit committee about these trade receivables to

selected trade receivables. We held discussions with
understand the judgements exercised in assessing the expected
credit loss of these trade receivables.

We assessed the appropriateness of judgements made by
management based on historical trend of collections and external
data. We involved our credit risk and accounting specialist in
assessing the assumptions and methodologies used in the

estimation of expected credit losses.

Based on the above, we are satisfied that the judgements made by
management are appropriate.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the chairman’s statement, 2018
highlights, board of directors, management and corporate information, financial highlights, year in review, corporate social
responsibility, corporate diary, corporate governance, directors’ statement and group offices (but does not include the
financial statements and our auditor's report thereon), which we obtained prior to the date of this auditor's report, and the
other sections of the Company’s Annual Report (“the Other Sections”) which are expected to be made available to us after

that date.
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Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not and will not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor's report, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

When we read the Other Sections, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to
communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take appropriate actions in accordance with SSAs.

Responsibilities of Management and Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with the
provisions of the Act and SFRS(I)s, and for devising and maintaining a system of internal accounting controls sufficient to
provide a reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorised use or disposition; and
transactions are properly authorised and that they are recorded as necessary to permit the preparation of true and fair
financial statements and to maintain accountability of assets.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors’ responsibilities include overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit.

We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor
's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
In our opinion, the accounting and the other records required by the Act to be kept by the Company and by those subsidiary
corporations incorporated in Singapore of which we are the auditors have been properly kept in accordance with the

provisions of the Act.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's reportis Tan Boon Chok.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Public Accountants and Chartered Accountants
Singapore, 21 February 2019
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